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To All Esteemed Shareholders
Dear Sirs,

It is my honor, and my colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, to express our
thanks and appreciation to H.H. Sheikh Mohamed Bin Zayed Al Nahyan, President
of the United Arab Emirates, for the unlimited support and assistance to us in all
fields.

For the year 2023, National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (‘NCTH" or the
“Corporation”) total revenue was Dhs, 669,20 Million compared to Dhs, 710,60 Million
in the past year 2022, showing a decrease of AED 41,39 Million or 5.83%. The Hotel
Division performed better this year compared last year increasing their revenue by
AED 34.18 Million or 21.25%. Meanwhile, Catering Division revenue decreased by
AED 64.24 Million or 12.92%, and Retail Division revenue decreased by AED 11.68
Million or 19.18%.

Net profit for the year 2023 was AED 68.08 Million, which is an improvement of AED
4.11 Million or 6.42% from AED 63.97 Million in 2022. Net Profit after deprecintion
from Hotel Division grew to AED 27.51 Million from AED 9.77 Million last year, or a
181.49% increase which can be attributed to general improvement in room rate and
occupancy percentage, as well as improvement of performance from Jebel Dhanna,
Dhafra Beach and Intercontinental Hotels and soft opening of the new
“Intercontinental Residences Abu Dhabi®,

Retail Division profits in 2023, were down by AED 6.89 million or 46.58% compared
to last year. The Corporation remains optimistic that the division will improve and is
focused on growing the number of retail outlets and expanding its hotels supply chain.

The profit of the Catering Division for the year 2023 has declined compared to 2022,
profits declined by AED 1.98 Million or 3.49% compared to last year.
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In terms of liquidity, the Corporation has shown a reduction in its cash balance and
short-term deposits compared to last year from Dhs. 389.7 Million to Dhs. 358.49
Million this yvear. The decline can be mainly attributed to increased finance cost
payments, project payments, and additional investment in Joint Venture. The
Corporation is still maintaining a good level of cash and short-term deposits that
contributed to Dhs. 12.568 Million in interest income in 2023, and all this while
meeting all the financing obligations of the Corporation during the year. The
Corporation’s liquidity continues to support its position to achieve its projects’
development.

The residential apartments in ADNEC has ramped up its leasing activities during
the year while the serviced apartments are undergoing pre-opening activities and
expected to start accepting guests in the first half of 2024, We are confident of the
strength of our country’s economy and the newly completed projects will strengthen
the Corporation’s position in the Abu Dhabi hotel & residential & properties market
in the medium and long terms and will provide additional revenues to the
Corporation and allow the Corporation to remain competitive.

On behalf of my colleagues the members of the Board of Dirvectors, | would like to
thank the Shareholders for their support and trust, all the public and private
establishments as well as the Management and Employees of the Corporation for
their efforts.

Thanks & rds,

Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Hosani
Chairman of the Board
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our apinion, the consclidated financial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidaled financial posilion of National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (the "Company” or
“MCTEH") and its hotels (together the "Corporation” or the “Group”) as at 31 December 2023, and its
consolidated financlal performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited

The Corporation's consolidated financial statements comprise;

- the consclidated statemant of financial position as at 31 December 2023,

] the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended.

= the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,

s the consolidated statement of changes In equity for the year then ended.

= the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the conseclidated financial statements, which include material accounting policy

Information and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibiliies under those standards are furlher described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audil
of the consolidated financial statermenis section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflicient and appropriate to provide a pasis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) izsued by the Intermniational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and ethical requirements that are relevant fo
our audit of the consolidated financial staterments in the Uniled Arab Emirates. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Coda.

Our audit approach

Overview . .

I Key audit matter I + Impairment assessment of properties

As part of designing our audil, we determined materislity and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the conzolidated financial statements. In particular, we considerad where the directors
made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncerain. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of managerent override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias lhat represented a risk of material misstatement
due fo fraud.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited Partrership - Aba Dhab, Loence no. 1001301
Al Khatem Tower, Abu Dhahi Global Markat, 25th Foor, PO Box 45263, Abu Dhabii - United Arab Emirates
T: #8719 (012 634 BBO0, F: 4871 {0)2 645 5610, www.pwe.comvime
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (zontinued)

Qur audil approach (continued)
Overview (continued)

We tallored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Corporation, the accounting processes and confrols, and the industry in which the Corporation
operates.

Key audit matters

Key audil matters are those matters thal, In our professional judgment, were of most significance In our
audit of the consclidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and In forming our oplinion

thereon. and we do not provide a separale opinicn on these matters.

Key audit matter - _
Impairment assessment of properties

The Corporation has AED 1.9 billion (2022: AED 1.8
billicn) of properties camed in the consolidated
statement of financial position representing 69% of «
lotal assels.

The Corporation performs a detailed impaiment
assessment of its significant properties whenever
there is an indication thal a properly may be =
impaired.

The aszessment of the carrying value of these
properties. requires  evaluating whether any
indicators of impairment exist in the assel base by
referance to the expected future profitability of the
cash generating units. The valuation models used
to assess the camying value of these properties are
based on a number of significant assumplions
relating to future cash flows and the relevant
discount rates applied.

As of 31 December 2023, the Corporation has
performed  internal  impairment  assessment.
Further, the Corporation engaged with external
experts to provide a valuation on the properties as
of year end. .

Impairment of properties is considered a key audit
matter due to the fact that it s inherently subjective
and requires slgnificant estimates and judgments.

Refer to note 4 which explains the critical judgments «
and estimates used in revaluing the plots of land
and nole 5 which explaing the valuation
methodology used by the Corporation,

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures performed in relation
to impairment assessment of proparties:

On a sample basis, we have tested and
discussed with management the
reasonablensss of the underying informatian
used in the impairment assessment.

We obtained the impairment and valuation
working and reports of the underlying
properties prepared by management.

We invoived our internal valuation specialists
who, on a sample basis, reviewed valuation
methodologies used In the valuation process.
We have considersed the  overall
reasonablenesss of the assumptions and
valuation methodology used and whether
they were In line with our expectations.

We performed sensitivity analysis on the
significant assumptions to evaluate the axtent
of the impact of changes in the key
assumptions to the conclusion reached by
management.

We have assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation approach and reasonableness of
the key wvaluation assumptions and held
discussions  with the Valuer and the
Corporation 's management.

We assessed the appropriateness and
adequacy of the related disclosures In note 4
and note 5 to these consolidated financial
statements.

(@)
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Chairman's
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon, which
we have obiained prior to the date of this auditor's report

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements doss not cover the other informaticn and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conneclion with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information iz materizlly
inconsistent with the consclidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwiss appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a2 material misstaternant of this
other infermation, we are required to repoert that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilites of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
stalements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 and for such internal control as
managemenl determines is necessary [0 enable the preparation of consolidated financial staternents
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concermn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management elther intends to liquidate
the Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the censolidated financial statemeants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinfon, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Mizstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
laken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

(3
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
{continued)

As part of an audil in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of nol detecting a material misstatemenl resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of intermnal control relevant to the audil in order lo design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

] Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonablengss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

- Conclude on the approprizteness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exisls
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation's ability to
continue as a going concermn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Dur conclusions are
based on the audil evidence oblained up to lhe date of our auditor's reporl, However, fulurs
events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease fo conlinue as a going concarm.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial
stalements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Cibtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Corporation to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the
Corporation audit We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
athical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
laken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report uniess law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expecled lo outwelgh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

{4)



-

pwcC

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021, we reporl that:

(i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audil;

(i) the consolidated financial statemenls have been prepared and comply, in all material
respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021;

(i} the Corporation has maintained proper books of account,

(iv) the financial information included in the Chairman’s report is consistent with the books of
account of the Corporation;

(v) as disclosed in notes 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements the Corporation has
purchased and/or invested in equity shares during the financial year ended 31 December
2023;

(wi} note 17 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related parly transactions,
and the terms under which they were conducted; and

(wii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Corporation has contravened during the year ended 31
December 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law Mo, 32 of
2021, or in respect of the Company, its Articles of Association which would materially afect itz
activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2023,

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited Parinership - Abu Dhabi

iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii

Rami Sarhan
Registered Auditor Number 1152
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
5 March 2024

{3)
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels
Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Investment in joint ventures
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Inventonies

Trade and other receivables

Short term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Statatory reserve

General reserve

Properties revaluation reserve

( Accumulated losses)retamed eamings
Net'total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Term loans

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Lease hahilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Term loans

Lease habilities

Total current labilities
Total liabilitics

Total equity and liabilities

Motes

== oo

I
12
12
12

13
14
15

16
13
15

Asal 31 December

2023 2022

AED AED
1,981,535,760  1,958,562,966
288,566,221 264,561,838
2,270,101,981  2.223,124,804
26,134,090 30,559,901
22,749,567 25,401,331
170,395,594 161,674,437
219076349 202,578,068
119416972 187,117,427
577,772.572 607,331,164
2,847,874,553  2.830,455,968
899026128 817,206,480
204,052,397 197,244,239
6,493,970 15,000,000
1,162,925,000  1,155,310,000
(19.653,182) 6,560,845

3252844313 2191411564

350,749,437 357,829,311
30,720,750 38,984,174
254,424 296,485

381,724611 397,079,970

177,564,641 211,787,446
35,679,120 30,115,120
61,868 61,868
213305629 241964434

595030240 639,044,404

2.847,874,553

2,830,455,968

To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial statemments fairly present, in all materzal

respects, the consofidated financial posit
the Group as of, and for the year ended 31

The sotes on pages 12 (o 65 are an integral past of these consolidated financial stateenenty.

ye

of aperations and consolidated cash flows of
2023,

(6)



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Notes

Revenue 24
Direct operating expenses 24
Gross profit
General and administrative expenscs 18
Share of results of joint ventures accounted for

using the equity method 6
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 7
Net reversal of impairment losses on financial

assets 9
Other income 19
Operating profit
Interest income 10
Finance costs 20
Finance (costs)/ income - net
Profit for the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share 21

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

AED AED
69,204,476 710,597,888
(572.585.578)  (625.345,862)

D0,618 808

£5.252,026

(24,843 499 (21,807,596)

4774913 (2.5312.956)

(6.814,767) (4,617,910
79352 01 444
5,657,968 5,377,769
75.472.865 062.592.777
12,583,078 8.547.252
(19.974,359) (7.164.420)
(7T.391.281) 1.382,832
68,081,584 63,975 609
(.08 0.07

17

The notes on pages 12 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Yeur ended 31 December

Notes 2023 2022
AED AED
Profit for the vear 68,081,584 63,975,609
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
Revaluation of land 7,615,000 5
Total comprehensive income for the year 75,696,584 63.975.609

The notes on pages 12 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. (8]



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2022

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive mcome for the year
Dividends paid (note 22)

Bonus shares issued (note 22)

Directors' remuneration paid (note 23)
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023

Prodit for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Bonus shares issued (note 22)

Directors' remuneration paid (note 23)
Release of reserve

Transfer of uncliomed dividends (note 16)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note 16}

At 31 December 2023

The notes on pages 12 to 635 are an integral pan of these consolidated tinancial statements.

(Accumulated
Properties losses)/

Share Statutory General revaluation retained Net/total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
AED AED AED AED AED AED
785,862,000  190.846.678 15,000,000 1,155.310,000 93,212,717 2.2400.231.395
- - - - 63,975,609 63,975,609

- - - - 63,975,609 63,975,609
- - - - (102,162,060} (102,162,060)

31.434 480 - - - (31.434.480) -
- - - - {10.633.380) (10.633.380)

- 0,397,561 - - (6.397.561) -
817296480 197 244 239 15000000 1,155.310,0000 6,560,845 2191 411,564
817.296.480 197,244,239 15,000,000 1,155,310.000 6,560,845  2.191.411.564
- - - - 68.081.584 68,081,584

- - - 7.615,000 - 7,615,000

- - - 7.615,000 68,081,584 75,696,584

81,720 648 - - - (81,729.648) .
- - - - (5.757.803) (5.757.805)

- - (8.506,03() - 8,506,030 -
. . - - (8,506.030) (8.506.030)

z 6,808,158 2 2 (6.808.158) =
809,026,128 204,052,397 6.493,970 1,162.925,000 (19.653.182)  2.252,844.313

(9



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 5
Interest income 10
Provision for employees™ end of service benefits 14
Finance costs 20
Net reversal of impairment losses on financial assets 9
Share of results of joint venlures fi
Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 7
Gain on sale of property and equipment 19
Dividend income 19

Operating cash flows before payment of
employees” end of service benefits and changes in
working capital

Emplovees” end of service benefits paid

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash Nows from investing activities
Net (placement)/redemption of deposits with original
maturily of more than three months
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 7
Proceeds from sale ol linancial assets at [air value
through profit or loss
Interest received
Pavments for additional investment in joint venture fi
Dividend received
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing
activities

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

AED AED
68,081,584 63,975,609
28,176,682 20.656,258
(12.583.078) (8.547.252)
8,986,601 8.764.950
19,974,350 7.164,420
(79.352) (901 444)
(4.774.913) 2.512.956
6,814,767 4.617.910
(844,848) (651,270)
(1.701.151) (488, 158)
112.050.651 106,103,979
(17.220,025)  (19,689,637)
2,651,764 (3.557.861)
(4.706.394) 40.018.476
(39.880.303)  (34.096,393)
52 895,693 88.778.564
(36,498 281} 206,308 848
(41.727.625)  (103,956,921)
1,191,380 792,082
(2.388.956)  (50,352.006)
- 30,805,413

8.647.667 11.216.570
(19.229.470)  (15,758.349)
1,701,151 488,158
(88.304.134) 79.543.795

The notes on pages 12 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

{1y



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

Notes

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from term loans

Repayment of term loans

Dividends paid

Directors’ remuneration paid

Transfer of unclaimed dividends

Finance costs paid

Principal elements of lease pavments 15
Interest paid on lease liabilities 15
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ol the year 10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10

Non-cash transactions:
Accrual tor purchase of property and equipment
Bonus shares issued

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

AED AED
25526878 65.854.796
(27.933.119) (27.933,119)
- (102,162,060)
(5.757.805) (10,633.380)
(3.678.,753) -
(18.387.345) (6.435,011)
(42,061} (39.497)
(19.807) (22,371)
(32.292.014) (81.370,642)
(67.700.455) 86,951.717
187,117,427 100,165,710
119,416,572 187,117,427
2153383 5.603.67%
81,729,048 31,434,480

The notes on pages 12 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(11)



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

1 General information

National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels (the “Corporation™), a public shareholding
company, was incorporated in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates (“"UAE™) on 11 December
1996 by Law No. (7) of 1996, to own, manage and mvest in hotels and leisure complexes and
to undertake other related business. The Corporation’s shares are listed on Abu Dhaby
Securities Exchange.

The Corporation’s registered office is P.O. Box 6942, Abu Dhabi, UAE.

The Corporation owns five hotels within the UAE: (a) Abu Dhabi InterContinental Hotel and
InterContinental Residences Abu Dhabi, both of which is manapged by an international hotel
operating company: and (b) Danat Al Ain Resort, Al Dhafra Beach Hotel and Danat Jebel Al
Dhanna Resort directly operated and managed by the Corporation. In addition, the Corporation
provides catering services and retail services and has investments in the following entities:

Country of  Principal Ownership Interest

Name Nature operation activity 2023 2022
Intercontimental Hotel Abu

Dhabi — Sole Proprietorshap

LLC Hotel UAL  Hospitality 100.00% =
Danat Al Ain Resort — Sole

Praprietorship LLC Haotel UAE Hospitality 1O 00 -
[Dranat Jabal Al Dhanna Resort —

Sole Proprietorship LLC Hatel LA Hospieality [ O 00" -
Al Dhafrn Beach Hotel - Sole

Proprietorship LLC Hatel UAE Hospitality TOEL 00 -

Intercontmental Residences
Abu Dhabi Hotel Apartments
— Sole Proprietorship LLC Hotel UAE Hospitality L 00

Matiopal Transporiation

. A Joint Transport
Company LLC('NTCT) o hure UAE SePI e 50,00% 50.00%
Velocity Property Development Joint Real
LLC Veriture UAE Estats 60.12% 60.12%

As at 31 December 2023, the Corporation operates four hotel properties and rest houses through
management agreements (31 December 2022: the Corporation operates four hotel properties
and rest houses through management agreements along with one hotel property through asset
management agreements), all owned by other parties. The Corporation has terminated the asset
management agreement with the hotel owner during the year.

Implementation of UAE Corporation Tax Law and application of IAS 12 [ncome Taxes

On 9 December 2022 UAE Federal Decree-Law no 47 of 2022 (the “Tax Law™) was published
setting in place a general corporate income tax lor the first time, The profit threshold of AED
375,000 at which the 9% tax will apply was set in place by Cabinet Decision No, 116 of 2022
which was published on 16 January 2023 and at this point the Tax Law was considered enacted
and substantively enacted for accounting purposes,
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

1 General information (continued)

Implementation of UAE Corporation Tax Law and application of 1AS 12 Income Taxes
{continued)

While current taxes are not payable on profits generated before the Group’s financial year
commencing on | January 2024, the existence of an enacted tax law results in the need to
immediately record deferred taxes on assets and liabilities where the carrying amount differs
fram the tax base. As per the management’s assessment, the impact of deferred taxes is not
material on the current year consolidated financial statements,

2 Material accounting policics

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are as set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

On 20 September 2021, the UAE Federal Decree Law No, 32 of 2021 ("Companies Law") was
issued and came into effect on 2 January 2022 which is applicable to the Group.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for land and certain financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below, Historical
cost is generallv based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a lability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of a financial assel or liability, the Corporation takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (AED) which is the
functional currency ot the Corporation.

2.2 Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance

with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and applicable requirements of laws of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated linancial statements incorporate the consolidated linancial statements of
the Corporation and the entities controlled by the Corporation. Control is achieved where the
Corporation has power over the investee: is exposed, or has rights. to variable returns from its
involvement: and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Corporation reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Corporation has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally, The Corporation considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Corporation’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including;

. the size of the Corporation’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion
ol holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Corporation, other vote holders or other parties;

) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Corporation has, or does

not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of 2 subsidiary begins when the Corporation obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Corporation loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Corporation gams control until the
date when the Corporation ceases to control the subsidiary. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Corporation and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Corporation and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All mtragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

When neeessary, adjustments are made 1o the consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2

24

Material accounting policies (continued)

Application of new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards

The following new and revised IFRS accounting standards that are mandatorily effective for
accounting periods that begins on or after 1 January 2023 have been adopted by the
Corporation. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounis reported for the current and prior periods but may alfect the
accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

feik

fhi

New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards effective for accounting periods
beginning on or afier | January 2023

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

This standard replaced 1FRS 4, which permitted a wide variety of praciices in accounting
for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 fundamentally changes the accounting by all entities that
issie insurance contracts,

Narrow scope amendments to LAS 1, Practice statement 2 and [AS 8

The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the
financial statements 1o distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies.

Amendment to 1AS 12 — deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction

These amendments require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to ¢qual amounts of taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Amendment to IAS 12 - International tax reform

These amendments give companies temporary relief from accounting for deferred
taxes arising from the Minimum Tax Implementation Handbook international tax
reform. The amendments also introduce targeted disclosure requirements for affected
companics,

Standards and Interpretations in issue but not vet effective

The Corporation has not early adopted the following new and revised IFRS accounting
standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback

These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS
16 to explaim how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback afier the date of the
transaction. Sale and leaseback transactions where some or all the lease payments are
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are most likely to be
impacted,

This standard is effective for annual perieds beginning on or after | January 2024,
(15}



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2
24

&)

2.5

Material accounting policies (continued)
Application of new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards (continued)
Standards and Interpretations in issue but not vet effective (continued)

Amendment to IAS 1 = Non-current liabilities with covenants

These amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within
twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of a liability. The
amendments also aim fo improve information an enfity provides related to liabilities
subject to these conditions,

This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024,

Amendment to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier finance

These amendments require disclosures 1o enhance the transparency of supplier finance
arrangements and their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to
liquidity risk. The disclosure requirements are the [ASB’s response to investors’
concems that some companies’ supplier finance arrangements are not sufficiently
visible, hindering investors” analysis.

This standard is effective for annual pertods beginning on or after | January 2024 (with
transitional reliefs in the first year).

Amendments to LAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeahility

An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a transaction or an operation in a
foreign currency that is not exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date
for a specified purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is an ability to obtain
the other currency (with a normal administrative delay), and the transaction would take
place through a market or exchange mechanism that ¢reates enforceable rights and
obligations.

This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2025 {early
adoption 15 available).

Business combinations

Business combinations falling within the scope of IFRS 3 are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Corporation elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Business combinations { continued)

The Corporation determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set ol activities
and assets include an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive il is critical o
the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised
workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it
significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost. effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs,

When the Corporation acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date through consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with LAS 39 either in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances
where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of LAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS,

If the initial accounting for a busingss combination 1s incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Corporation reporis in its consolidated linancial
statements provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During
the measurement period, the Corporation adjusts the provisional amounts recognised at the
acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have alfected the measurement of the amounts
recognised as of that date.

The measurement period ends as soon as the Corporation receives the necessary information
about the facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that the
information is not obtainable, However, the measurement period cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to
those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries, The Corporation’s investments in its
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

The results and assels and liabilities of associate and joint venture are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it 1s accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Under the equity method. the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
at cost. The carryving amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Corporation's share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the joint venture i5 included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
tested for impairment individually,

The consolidated statement ol profit or loss reflects the Corporation's share of the results of
operations of the joint venture, Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees
is presented as part of the Corporation's other comprehensive income. In addition. when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Corporation
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Corporation and
the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Corporation's share of profit or loss of a joint venture 1s shown on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or
loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Corporation. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Corporation.

The requirements of 1AS 36 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Corporation’s investment in joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with LAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised 15 not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount ol the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Investment in joint ventures (conlinued)

Upon loss of joint control over the joint venture the Corporation measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carryving amount of the joint
venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When the Corporation contributes a non-monetary asset, not a business, in exchange for an
equity interest in the joint venture, it recognises any gain or loss from the transaction to the
extent of the unrelated party’s interest. The cost of the investment in the joint venture is the
cost of the asset contributed plus the recognised portion of the gain or loss plus anv transaction
costs or confingent consideration.

When the Corporation reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture but the Corporation
continues to use the eguity method, the Corporation reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,

When the Corporation transacts with a joint venture of the Corporation. profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Corporation.

2.7 Property and equipment

Land is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrving smount does not ditfer significantly from that which would be
determined using lair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land is credited to the properties
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
assel previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in carrying amount arising
on the revaluation of such land is charged as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
ifany, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

All other property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)

1.7  Property and equipment (continued)

Assets under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. When commissioned.
assets under construction are transferred to the appropriate property and equipment asset

category and depreciated in accordance with the Corporation’s policies.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Buildings 10 - 50
Mechanical, electrical and plumbing 7-15
Furniture, fixtures and operating equipment 5-10
Motor vehicles 4-5

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each vear
end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land are credited to consolidated
staternent of other comprehensive imcome and shown as a properties revaluation reserve in
equity, Decreases that offsel previous increases of the same asset are charged in other
comprehensive income and debited against properties revaluation reserve directly in equity: all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrving value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount. being the higher of their fair value less
cost to sell and their value in use.

1N Capital work in progress

Properties or assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes all dircet costs
attributable to the design and construction of the asset including related staff costs, and for
qualifying assets. borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Corporation’s accounting
policy. When the assets are ready for intended wvse, the capital work in progress is transferred
to the appropriate property and equipment or intangible asset category and is depreciated or
amortised in accordance with the Corporation’s policies.
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National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.9  Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Corporation reviews the carrying amounis of its non-financial assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
[T any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset i1s estimated to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identitied. corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units. or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be wentified.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least annually and
whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use. the estimated future cash lows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated 1o be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit} 1s reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant assel is carried at a révalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
uniless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
umpairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

2,10 Leases
feik The Corporation as lessor

The Corporation enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of Corporation’s
building units,

Leases for which the Corporation is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases,
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
.10 Leases (continued)
fa) The Corporation as lessor (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Corporation’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so0 as to reflect a constant periadic rate of return on the Corporation’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components. the Corporation applies IFRS 15 to
allocate consideration under the contract to each component.

th) The Corporation as lessee

The Corporation assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
The Corporation recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Corporation recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. IT this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Corporation uses its incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

. fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date,

. the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,

. the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
the options; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise

of an option fo terminate the lease,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)
() The Corporation as lessee (continued)

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of financial
position,

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Corporation remeasures the lease liability and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset whenever;

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option. in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

. the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value. in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
{unless the lease payments change is due to a change i a floating interest rate, in which
case a revise discount rate is used).

. a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

The Corporation did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter penod of lease term and useful hife of
the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlving asset or the cost of the
right-of-use of asset reflects that the Corporation expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related night-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying assel. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-ol-use of assels are presented under the property and equipment in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Corporation applies 1AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and
aceounts for an identified impairment loss as described in the property and equipment policy.

Wariable rents thal do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
included in the lines of *direct operating expenses’ and “general and administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, [FRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and
instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement,
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
L11 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance
for any obsolete or slow moving items. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition and are determined on a weighted average cost
basis.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

212 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at banks, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject 1o an insignilicant risk of changes in value,

2.13  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ol the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obhigation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.14 Emplovees' end of service benefits

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and leave
passage as a result of services rendered by eligible employees up to the reporting date,

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service benefit due to non-UAE national
employees in accordance with UAE Labouwr Law, for their period of service up to the reporting
date. With respect to its national employees, the Corporation makes contributions to a UAE
Government pension scheme calculated as a percentage of the employees' salaries, The
Corporation’s obhigations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

The acerual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed as a current liability, while the
provision relating to end of service benefit is disclosed as a non-current liability.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.15  Term loans

Term loans are recognised initially at fair value. net of transaction costs incurred. Term loans
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the term of
the term loans using the effective interest method. Term loans are classified as non-current
liabilities when the Corporation has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for more than twelve months after the reporting date.

2.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying
asset are capitalised (net of interest income on temporary investment of borrowings) as part of
the cost of the asset until the asset is commissioned for use. Borrowing costs in respect of
completed assets or not atiributable o qualifying assets are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.17  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payvables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not. they are presented as non-current liabilities.

2.18  Financial instruments

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Corporation becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial habilities are imitially measured at fair value, Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or linancial habilities, as approprate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or [inancial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately i
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.18.1 Classification of financial assets and liabilities
fa) Initial recognition

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost or fair value
through profit or loss ("[air value through prolit or loss™).
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Financial instruments {continued)

2.18.1 Classification of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
fei) Inivial recognition (continued)

Financial assets at amoritised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at fair value through protit or loss account:

. it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows: and
. its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
fh) Financial assets ail fair value through profit or loss

On initial recognition, the Corporation may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured ar amortised cost as fair value through profit
or loss, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss,
fet Business model assessment

The Corporation makes an assessment of the ohjective of a business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information 15 provided to management. The information considered includes:

. the Irequency, volume and timing of trades of financial assets in prior penods, the
reasons for such trades and its expectations about the future trading activity. However,
information about trading activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Corporation’s stated objective for managing the financial assets
is achieved and how cash flows are realised:

. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the management; and

* the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed,

Financial assets that are held for trading and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at fair value through profit or loss because they are neither held to collect
contractual cash flows, nor held both to collect contractual cash Mows and to sell financial
assefs.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Financial instruments {continued)
2.18.1 Classification of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

fel) Assessment whether contractual cash flows arve solely pavments of principal and
inferest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition,

“Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the outstanding principal.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
on the outstanding principal, the Corporation considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition.

fel Financial lNabililies

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or
loss, A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as
held-for-trading. it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities. at initial recognition, may be designated at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are mel:

’ the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis:

. the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on fair value basis, in accordance with a documented nsk
management strategy. or

' the financial liability contains an embedded dervative that would otherwise need (o be
separately recorded.

Finaneial liabilinies at Fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and net gains

and losses. including any interest expense, are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Financial instruments {continued)
1.18.2 Subsequent measurement and gain or losses
fei) Financial assets at antortived cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange pains
and losses and impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

th)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses. including any
interest or dividend income. are recogmised in the consolidated statement of protit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

fe) Financial Habilitles at amoriised cost

Mainly includes borrowings and trade and other payables. After inmitial recognition, the
aforementioned liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (“EIR™) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost i1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the consolidated statement ol profit or loss.

2.18.3 Reclassification

fa) Financial assets

The Corporation only reclassify financial assets if, and only if, the objective of the business
model for managing those financial assets is changed. Such changes are expected to be very
infrequent as these changes must be significant to the Corporation’s operations and
demonstrable to external parties.

fhi Finanecial labilities

The Corporation determines the classification of financial habilities on initial recognition.
Subsequent reclassification is not permitted.
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2 Material accounting policics (continued)

2.18 Financial instruments (continued)

2.18.4 Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
feid Financial asseis

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Corporation evaluates whether the cash tflows
of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different,
then the contractual rights to cash flows from the onginal financial asset are deemed (o have
expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different,
then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the
Corporation recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the
amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the
consolidated statement ol profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

) Financial liahilities

If the terms of a financial liability are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially ditferent then, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

2.18.5 Derecognition
fil Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

’ the Corporation retains the right 1o receive cash Mows from the asset, bul assumes an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through™ arrangement, or

. the Corporation has transterred its rights to receive cash Hows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) has neither
transferred nor retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecogniton that is created or
retained by the Corporation is recognised as a separale asset or liability.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.18  Financial instruments (continued)

2.18.5 Derecognition (continued)

fa) Finaneial asseiy (continued)

The Corporation enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
consolidated statement of financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

In transactions in which the Corporation neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the
Corporation continues 1o recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement.
determined by the extent to which it is exposed 10 changes in the value of the transferred asset.

fhi Measured at amortised cost

Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

i) Financial liahilifies

The Corporation derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expired.

2.18.6 Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 specifies the “incurred loss” model with a Torward-looking “expected credit losses’
(*ECL'") model. Assessing how changes in economic factors affect ECL requires considerable

judgement, ECL are determined on a probability-weighted basis.

The Corporation recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following instruments that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

. financial assets measured that are debt instruments carried at amortised cost or FVOCT;
and
. financial guarantee contracts issued.

The Corporation measures loss allowances either using general or simplified approach as
considered appropriate.

Under general approach, loss allowances are measured at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit loss except when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
inception. In such cases, the Corporation measures loss allowances at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Financial instruments {continued)
2.18.6 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Under simplified approach, loss allowances are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit loss,

Lifetime ECL: These losses are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, if there 1s significant increase in eredit nsk or under
simplified approach.

{ 2-month ECL: These losses are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life
of the instrument 15 less than 12 months).

fa) Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, It is measured as follows:

. financial assets that are not credit-impaired: as the present value of all cash shortfalls
{i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Corporation in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Corporation expects to receive); and

. financial assets that are credit-impaired; as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,

)] Definition of default

The Corporation considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

. when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor: or

. iformation developed internally or obtamed from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Corporation, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the Corporation).

Irrespective ol the above analysis, the Corporation considers that default has oceurred when a
financial asset is more than 90-300 days past due, depending on the business segment, unless
the Corporation has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default eriterion is more appropriate.

fr) Reversaly of impaivment
If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is

written back by reducing the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The write-back
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Financial instruments {continued)

2.18.6 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
fild Wrire-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there 15 no realistic prospect of recovery. This 15 generally the case when the
Carporation determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written oft could still be subject to enforeement activities in order to comply
with the Corporation’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

2,19 Revenue recognition

For contracts determined to be within the scope of revenue recognition, the Corporation is required
to apply a five-step model to determine when to recognise revenoe, and at what amount, Revenue
is measured based on the consideration to which the Corporation expects to be entitled in a
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, The
Corporation recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

The Corporation recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on the five step
model set out in IFRS 15:

Step 1 ldentify contraci(s) with a customer: A contract is delined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria tor every contract that must be met.

Step 2 1dentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise
ina contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 1o the customer.

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Corporation expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services (o a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation. the Corporation allocates the
lransaction price 1o each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount
ol consideration to which the Corporation expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5 Fecognise revenue when (or as) the Corporation satisfies a performance obligation.

The Corporation satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, il one of
the following criteria is met:

. The Corporation’s performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the
Corporation and the Corporation has as an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

. The Corporation’s performance creates or enhances an assel that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.19  Revenue recognition (continued)

. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Corporation’s performance as the Corporation performs.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are nol metl, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satistied.

The stand-alone selling prices are determined based on the observable price at which the
Corporation sells the products and services on a standalone basis. For items that are not sold
separately the Corporation estimates standalone selling prices using other methods (ie.
adjusted market assessment approach, cost plus margin approach or residueal approach ).

When the Corporation satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or
services it creates a contract-based asset on the amount of consideration earned by the
performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount
of revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract liability. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Corporation assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific eriteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. Revenue
is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will Now to the Corporation
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Corporation recognises revenue from the following major sources:

’ Hotel revenues

. Retail revenues

. Catering revenues
. Management fee

faj Hartel revenies

Hotel revenue corresponds to all the revenues received from guests of the hotels. The services
rendered (including room rentals, food and beverage sales and other ancillary services) are
distinet performance obligations, for which prices invoiced to the guests are representative of
their stand-alone selling prices. These obligations are fulfilled at a point in time when they have
been delivered or rendered.

fh) Retail revenues
For sales of goods to retail customers, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has

transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet. Payment of
the transaction price 15 due immediately at the point the customer purchases the poods.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.19  Revenue recognition (continued)
fc) Catering revenues

Revenue 1s recognised in the period in which food and support services are provided in
accordance with the terms of the contractual relationships with third parties. Revenue
represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for food and support
services provided in the normal course of business, excluding, value added tax and similar sales
taxes.

fel Management fee

Management fee is related to the provision of management and asset management services (o
the managed hotels and is recognised when the services are performed.

2.20  Foreign currencies

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, the UAE Dirham (AED) is the
functional and presentation currency of the Corporation.

Transactions in currencies other than AED ( fnrcign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Al each reporting date, monetary ilems
denominaied in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss m the period in which they arise.
2.21  Value added tax (“VAT™)

Output VAT related to sales is payable to tax authorities, based on the applicable VAT rate for
each company within the Corporation, on the earlier of (a) collection of receivables from
customers or (b) delivery of goods or services to customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable
against output VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The tax authorities permit the settlement of
VAT on a net basis. VAT related to sales and purchases is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on a net basis. Where provision has been made for the ECL of
receivables, the impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of the debtor. including VAT.

3 Financial instruments by category

£ | Capital management

The primary objective of the Corporation’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The
Corporation manages its capital strueture and makes adjustments to i, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022,
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3 Financial instruments by category (continued)

31 Capital management (continued)

Consistent with others m the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio, This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital, Net debt is calculated as total
term loans and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and advances to related parties,
Total capital is calculated as “net'total equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at the vear-end were as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
Term loans (note 13) 386,428,557 387.944 431
Lease liabilities (note 15) 316,292 338,353
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 10) (1194165972} {(187.117.427)
Less: advances to related parties (note 17) {5.000.000) -
Met debt 262,327,877 201,185,357
Net/total equity 2,252,844 313 2,191.411.564
Capital 2515172190 2.392.596.921
Gearing ratio 10% 8%
3.2 Classes of financial instruments
2023 2022
AED AED
Financial asscts
Financial asscts at amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalent 119416972 187.117.427
Short term deposits 239,076,349 202578068

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments
and advances)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

135,521,597
26,134,090

133,330,298
30.559.901

320,149,008

553.585.694

Trade and other payables {excluding deferred income) 175.826.152 200 488,022
Term loans IR6428 557 AR7.944 431
Lease liabilities 316,292 358,353

562,571,001 597,790,806

3.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Corporation is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments - credit risk,
liquidity risk, and price risk. The Corporation has not framed formal risk management policies,
however, the risks are monitored by management on a continual basis. The Corporation does
not enler into or trade in [inancial instruments. investmenl in securities. including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative or risk management purposes.
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3 Financial instruments by category (continued)
34 Credit risk

Credil risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Corporation. Key areas where the Corporation is exposed to
eredit risk are trade and other receivables and bank and cash balances (liquid assets).

The Corporation has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults, The Corporation attempts to control
credit risk by monitoring credit exposures. limiting transactions with specific non-related
counterpartics, and continually assessing  the  creditworthiness  of  such  non-related
counlerparties.

Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities, or activities in the same geographic region. or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected
by changes in economic, political or other conditions, Concentration of credit risk indicates the
relative sensitivity of the Corporation’s performance to developments atfecting a particular
industry or geographic location. Management believes that the concentration of credit risk is
mitigated by high credit rating and financial stability of its trade customers.

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are among
the major banks operating in the UAE and are highly regulated by the central bank, The amount
that best represents maximum credit risk exposure on financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. in the event counter parties fail to perform their obligations generally approximates
their carrying value.

A5 Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to meet its fimding requirements.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Corporation’s non- derivative financial
liabilities. The contractual maturities of the financial liabilitics have been determined on the
basis of the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date,
The maturity prafile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

The table below analyses the Group™s financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the
remaining period at the consolidated statement of finaneial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not signiticant.
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3 Financial instruments by category (continued)

3.5 Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the non-derivative financial liabilities at the end of reporting period based on contractual repayment arrangements are a5

follows:
Total
Less than 6to 12 1to5 Morethan contractual Total earrying
On demand 6 months months vears S vears cash Nows amount
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
At 31 December 2023
Term loans - 16,748,560 I8,930,560 185,684,278 166,845,894 388,200,292 386,428,557
Trade and other payables
(excluding deferred income) - 175,826,152 - - - 175,826,152 175,826,152
Lease liabilities : 61,868 - 247472 6952 316292 316,292
Total - 192,636,580 18.930.560 185,931,750 166,852,846 564,351,736 562,571,001
At 31 December 2022
Term loans - 13,966,560 6. 148,560 196417012 164083402 390,615,534 387944 431
Trade and other payables
{excluding deferred income) - 174.346.204 35.141.81% - - 209.488.022 209 488.022
Lease liabilities - 61,868 - 247472 49013 358,353 358353
Total - 188.374.632 51.290.378 196,664,454 164.132415  600.461.909 597.790.806

The Corporation does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease labilities. Lease liabilities are monitored by the Corporation’s
treasury function. All lease obligations are denominated in AED.
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3 Financial instruments by category (continued)
3.6 Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance
income or finance cost of the Corporation. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk on
its term deposits and bank borrowings that carry both fixed and floating interest rates which
are detailed in notes 10 and 13,

fea) Inierest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to variable interest
rates mainly arising from bank borrowings. assuming the amount of liability at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on borrowings had been 10 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, profit for the vear would have been AED 0.39 million
(2022: AED 0.39 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
Moating rate borrowings,

The Corporation’s borrowings are denominated in UAE Dirhams.
3.7 Fair value of financial instruments

The Corporation’s management considers that the carrving amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities approximates their tair value.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value. grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable:

. Level 1 — fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities:
. Level 2 — fair value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted

prices within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e..
as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derved from prices); and

' Level 3 — fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable mputs),
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

While applving the accounting policies as stated in note 2, management of the Corporation has
made certain judgments, estimates and assumptions that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
lactors that are considered to be relevant, Actual resulis may differ from these estimaies,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of the revision in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the tuture. and other key sources of
cstimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial vear.

4.1 Revaluation of land

The Corporation measures its land at the revalued amount. The revalued amount of land is
determined by independent real estate valuation experts using market (sales comparison)
valuation approach; a suitable method of valuation that is normally used to value lands and is
an approach that would be adopted for use in the local market. The revalued amount is
determined by comparing the land’s characteristics with those of comparable properties which
recently have been sold in similar transactions in the market. Adjustments are made to reflect
the period of time that has passed between the transaction date and the date of valuation, or the
price that is expected 10 be achieved following a negotiated sale. Data source of market
evidence has been obtained from sources such as anecdotal information/evidence obtained
from wvarious sources and real estate brokers active in the locality, the expert’s internal
research/enquiries and personal knowledge of certain sales transactions that have taken place.

Revalued amounts are based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty, however,
management does not expect such assumptions (o materially differ from the actual results, The
Corporation reported change in the revalued amount of increase of AED 7,615,000 as at 31

December 2023 (2022: decrease of nil).
4.2 Impairment of property and equipment

Hotel properties and hotel properties under constructions (collectively referred as “hotel
properties”) classified under property and equipment are assessed for impairment when there
is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. An impairment review is
carried out by determining the recoverable amount which takes into account the fair value of
these hotel properties under consideration. The fair values of these hotel properties are
determined by an independent real estate valuation expert using Income Capitalisation method,
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

4.2 Impairment of property and equipment (continued)

Cash flows are determined with reference to recent market conditions. prices existing at the
end of the reporting period, contractual agreements and estimations over the useful lives of the
assets and discounted using a range of discount rates that rellects current markel assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The net present values are compared
to the carrying amounts to assess any probable impairment. Based on the assessment
performed, the management concluded that there is no impairment of hotel properties as of 31
December 2023 and 2022,

4.3 Calculation of loss allowance

The Corporation assesses the impairment of its financial assets based on the expected credit
loss (“ECL") model. Under the expected credit loss model, the Corporation accounts for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at the end of each reporting
pericd to reflect changes in eredit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. The
Corporation measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for its financial
instruments,

When measuring ECL, the Corporation uses reasonable and supportable forward looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will aifTect each other, Loss given default is an estimate of the
loss ansing on default, It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral
and integral credit enhancements. Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring
ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood ot default over a given time horizon.
the caleulation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

At the reporting date, the Corporation has recognised total allowance for ECL amounting to
AED 7,185,403 (31 December 2022: AED 7,264,755), The Corporation’s trade receivables are
mainly due from Government related entities. Any difference between the amounts actually
collected in future periods and the amounts expected 1o be received will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the ECL rates on each past due time bucket had been 0.5% higher/(lower) as of December
2023 and 2022, the loss allowance on trade receivables would have been changed as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED

Dhue for 1 to 30 days T6.551 120,825
Due for 31 to 60 days 31.888 104,743
Due for 61 to 90 days 22,294 5,744
Due for 21 to 120 davs 13,863 4,015
Due for more than 120 days 34,712 32,961
179,308 268,288
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4 Critical accounting judgemcents and key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

4.4 Usetul lives of property and equipment

The useful lives and residual values of the property and equipment are based on management’s
judgement of the historical pattern of useful lives and the general standards in the industry. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cyeles. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
uselul lives are less than previously estimated lives. or it will write-off or write-down technical
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

4.5  Capitalisation of capital work in progress

In determining the timing to capitalise capital work in progress, management has considered
the principles of IAS 16 Property. Plant and Equipment. On that basis, management considers
the capability of the assets (o operate in the manner intended by management, taking into
consideration trends and level of production and salability of the products.

4.6  lmpairment of investments in joint ventures

Management regularly reviews its investments in joint ventures for indicators of impairment.
This determination of whether investments in joint ventures impaired entail management’s
evaluation of the specific mvestee’s profitability, liquidity. solvency and ability are to generate
operating cash flows from the date of acquisition and until the foreseeable future. The
difference between the estimated recoverable amount and the carrving value of investment is
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Management is
satisfied that no impairment provision is necessary on its investments in joint ventures.
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5 Property and equipment

Cost

AL 1 January 2022
Additions

Disposals

Transfers

At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023
Additions
Revaluation of land
Disposals

Transfers

AL 3l December 2023

Mechanical, Furniture,
electrical and  fixtures and
Land at plumbing operating Motor  Capital work
revalued  Buildings at  equipment at equipment at vehicles in progress at
amount cost cost cost at cost cost Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
1.155.310.,000 650,724,441 167,712,260 309,748,312 24.501,738 378.012,160  2.686,908911
- - 350,489 10,232,476 710,302 08,267,332 109,560,599
- - - (1,682.559)  (3,523.554) - {5.206,113)
- 3147803 400,000 967698 - (4,515,591)
1.155.310,000 653,872,334 168,462,749 319,265,927 21688486  472.663.901 2.791,263.397
1,155.310.000 653 872334 168,462,749 319,265,927  21.688 486 472663901 2.791,263,397
- - 270,500 14,493,187 1.108.412 27 408,909 43 881,008
7,615,000 - - - - - 7,615,000
" = - (3.608.335)  (2,730.05) . (6.338,383)
- 381,293,126 66,604,262 51.162.052 - (499.039.440) -
1,162,925.000 1.035.165,460 235,937,511 381,312,831 20,066,848 2.836,421,020

1,013,370

(42)



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

5 Property and equipment (continued)

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2022

Charge tor the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023
Charge tor the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Carrving amount
At 31 December 2023
At 31 December 20022

Mechanical,
electrical Furniture,
and  fixtures and Capital
Land at plumbing operating Maotor work in
revalued Buildings at  equipment at  equipment at vehicles at  progress at
amount cost cost cost cost cost Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
- 393902906 129,602,058 265,575,129 19,029,381 - BOB.109.474
- 11.333.385 4.708.423 11,785.563 1,828,887 - 29.656.258
= o - - (1,653,739) (3411,562) - (5.065,301)
- 405236291 134310481 275,706,953 17.446,706 - 832700431
- 405,236,291 134310481 275,706,953 17.446,706 - §32,700,431
- 12.411.274 4.585.121 9.481.167 1.699.120 - 28,176,682
- 417647565  |138.895602 28] .R14.95] 16,527,142 - R54,885.260
1,162.925.000 617,517,895 07.041,909 99,497 880 3,539,706 1,013,370 1,981,535,760
1,155,310,000  248.636,043 34,152,268 43,558,974 4241780 472663901 1958562 966

As at 31 December 2023, the Corporation has a right to use asset on leased out land with a net carrying value of AED 281,529 (2022: AED
127.362), and the amortisation charge for this right to use asset amounted to AED 45,833 (2022: AED 45,834), This has been classified under

buildings.

Giain on sale ol property and equipment during the year amounted to AED 844 848 (2022: AED 651,.270) (note 19).
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5 Property and equipment (continued)

The depreciation charge has been allocated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:

2023 2022

AED AED

Direct operating expenses (note 24) 27.369,896 28.028.813
General and administrative expenses (note 18) B0G, T8O 1.627.445
28,176,682 20.656.258

In 2023, the Corporation carried out a review of recoverable value of its hotel properties. The
recoverable value of hotel properties is based on fair value less cost to sell and has been
determined by reference to the income capitalisation method using exit vield of 6% to 9%
(2022: §% to 8.75%) and a discount rate of 9% to 12% (2022: 8.50%). No impairment was
recognised on the hotel properties for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: no impairment
was recognised).

In estimating the recoverable amounts of the hotel properties, the highest and best use of the
properties were considered. The inputs used in the valuation are not based on observable
market data, and thus, the valuation techniques were considered to be Level 3 fair value
measurement,

5.1 Revaluation of land

Included in property and equipment is land stated at AED 1.16 billion as at 31 December 2023
(2022: AED 1,16 billion) of revaluation amount.

The revalued amounts of the Corporation’s land are arrived at on the basis of a valuation that
was carried out by an independent registered third party valuer (“the Valuer™) in accordance
with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards issued by the Roval Institute of Chartered
Survevors ("RICS™) using market (sales comparison) valuation approach.

In estimating the revalued amounts of the land, the highest and best use of the land have been
considered.

The valuations were determined by vsing the market (sales comparison) valuation approach,
The approach involves measuring the present value of the business resources based on the flow
of prices of these resources on the free market and exchange between willing persons (seller
and buyer) on such market, The valuation has been conducted as at 31 December 2023,

The inputs used in the valuation are not based on observable market data, and thus, the
valuation techniques were considered to be Level 3 fair value measurement.
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5 Property and equipment (continued)
5.1 Revaluation of land (continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of the land are as follows:
Net average sales price/sgft for land® AED 1275 - AED 972,00

*The sales price range pertains to various plots of land located in various locations within Abuy

Dhabi,

The Corporation conducted sensitivity analysis showing the impact of change in sales price per
square foot for its land as of 31 December 2023, Accordingly, an increase in expected sales
price per square foot by 5% would result in AED 58.1 million increase in the valuation, whilst
a decrease of 3% would result in AED 58.1 million decrease in valuation of the revalued
amount of the Corporation’s plots of land.

5.2 Capital work in progress

At 31 December 2023, the total capital work in progress amounted to AED 1.0 million (2022:
AED 472.7 million). During the year, the new hotel property InterContinental Residences Abu
Dhabi which was previously under construction, was handed over to the Corporation and
started its commercial operations, accordingly, the costs of the new hotel property was
transferred out of the capital work in progress account,

During the year, borrowing costs amounting to AED 13.4 million (2022: AED 14.4 million)
have been capitalised at an average rate of 2.5% - 3.5%"% (2022: 3.5%) over 3-months EBOR,

Term loans are secured with mortgage over land and building with carrving value of AED 1.55
billion (2022: AED 117 billion) (Note 13},

6 Investment in joint ventures

2023 2022

AED AED

National Transport Company LLC (a) 25920 89h 21,835,967
Velocity Property Development LLC (b) 262,636,325 242,725,871
288,566,221 264,561,838

The Corporation holds 50% and 60.12% of the voting rights of its joint arrangements.
respeclively, The Corporation has joint control over these arrangements as under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is required from all parties to the agreements for
all relevant activities. The Corporation’s joint arrangements provide the Corporation and the
parties to the arrangements with rights to the net assets,
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6 Investment in joint ventures (continued)
far) National Transport Company

Investment in joint ventures includes an investment to National Transport Company LLC

(“NTC™) of 50%. Movement in the investment in NTC 1s as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
At | January 21,835,967 18,308,345
Share of results for the year 4,093,929 3.527.619
At 31 December 25,929 896 21.835.967

Summarised financial mformation below represents amounts shown i NTC's consolidated

financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting standards:

2023 2022

AED AED
Revenue 40,829,778 316,443,499
Cost of sales (31,740.507) (29,242,749
Administrative expenses (3.160,382) (2,354,059)
Other income 3,144,430 2464744
Finance costs (BE5.461) {256.197)
Profit for the year 5,187,858 7.055,238
Corporation’s share of results for the year 4,093,929 3.527.619
Property and equipment 62252611 47.960.692
Trade receivables and prepayments 20,715,589 23.027471
Cash and cash equivalents 2,459,063 1.113,186
Trade payables and accruals (23339317} (17,735,622}
Employees' end of service benefils (2.047.117) (1,753,155)
Term loans (8.046.221) (8.785.398)
Value added tax payable (164.816) (155.240)
Net assets 51,859,792 43.671.934
Cotporation’s share of net assels at 50% 25,929,896 21,835 967

(h) Velocity Property Development LLC

In 2015, the Corporation and a third party company entered into a formal joint venture
agreement to establish Velocity Property Development LLC (the “Joint Venture™ or
“WVelocity™) with initial share capital contribution of 60.12% and 39.858%, respectively, The
Corporation contributed land and existing works to the Joint Venture.

The Joint Venture has been formed for the purpose ol developing and managing the plot
located at ADNEC area in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.
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6 Investment in joint ventures (continued)
fh) Velocity Property Development LLC (continued)

Movement 1o the investment in Joint Venture 15 as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
At | January 242 725 871 233,008,097
Additional investment 19,229,470 15,758,340
Share of results for the year 0R(,984 (60,040,575)
At 3] December 262 636,325 242725 871

In 2017, the control over the land and existing works as contributed by the Corporation with a
fair value of AED 218.6 million as determined by an external valuer were transferred to the
Joint Venture, In addition to the in-kind contribution for the land and works, the Corporation
made additional cash contributions to Velocity Property Development LLC (“Welocity™).
increasing the effective percentage shareholding of the Corporation. As per the terms of the
shareholders™ agreement of Velocity. the inal percentage ownership of each shareholder is (o
be recalculated and adjusted upon the occurrence of the Project Completion Date. The
Corporation, together with the other shareholder of Velocity, are in discussion to finalise the
percentage ownership of cach party over Velocity in accordance with the sharcholders’
agreement. As at 31 December 2023, the effective percentage ownership of the Corporation
over Velocity is 63.86% (31 December 2022; 63.86%). As at 31 December 2023, the
Corporation has contributed land and existing works with fair value of AED 218.6 million (31
December 2022: AED 215.6 million) and cash contribution of AED 52.7 million (31 December
2022: AED 33.5 million) to Velocity, The development has been substantially completed and
the entity is expected to start the full operation once the development is finahsed. The
contributions made during the vear amounted to AED 19.2 million. The Corporation’s share of
profits of the Joint Venture for the current year amounted to AED 0.7 million (2022: share of
losses of AED 6.0 million).

In accordance with the above, for the year 2023, the Corporation recorded its share of resulls
in the net profits of the two joint ventures amounting to AED 4,774,913 (2022: net losses
amounting to AED 2,512.956).

7 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2023 2022
AED AED
Investments in quoted shares 26,134,090 30.559,901
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7 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Movements in the financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss were as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED
At | Januvary 30,559,901 15.631.218
Purchase of quoted shares 2 388,956 50,352,006
Decrease in fair value (6,814,767) (4,617.910)
Disposal of quoted shares - (30,805,413)
Al 31 December 26,134,090 30.559 901

In 2023, the Corporation purchased shares amounting to AED 2.4 million (2022: 50.4 million)
in listed equity securities in active market transactions, In 2022, the Corporation sold a portion
of its imvestment in the listed equity securities and the net gain resulted from these transactions
was accounted in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Based on the business model of
the Corporation, the management classified these securities as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The inputs used are based on observable market data. and thus. the
valuation techniques were considered to be Level 1 fair value measurement.

8 Inventories
2023 2022
AED AED
Food and beverages 16,212,030 22,298 438
Engineering and operating supplies 6,537,537 3,102,893
22,749,567 25401,331

Inventories recognised as an expense during 2023 amounted to AED 2252 million
(2022: AED 257.3 million). These were included in direct operating expenses.

9 Trade and other receivables
2023 2022
AED AED
Trade receivables 115,601,358 117.734,181
Less: allowance for impairment (7.185.403) (7.264,755)
108,415,955 110,469 426
Prepayments and advances 34,873,997 18,344,139
Interest receivables 6,048,606 2,113,195
Amounts due from related parties (note 17) 9,118,642 5,114,330
Other receivables 11,935,394 15,633,347
170,395,594 161,674,437
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9 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Prepayments and advances include advance provided to contractor during the year amounting
to mil (2022: AED 274.5 thousand) related to construction of Intercontinental Residences Abu
[Dhabi project (note 5) and AED 422.5 thousand (2022; AED 2.0 million) related to other hotel

renovation projects.

The average credit period on sale of goods or services rendered is 30 days. No interest is
charged on outstanding trade receivables.

The Corporation measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal 1o
lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision
matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economie
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Corporation writes off trade and other receivables when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difTiculty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptey
proceedings. During the vear, the Corporation has not written off trade or other receivables.

The Corporation has adopted a policy of dealing only with creditworthy counterparties.
Adequate credit assessment is made before accepting an order for services or sale of goods
from any counterparty.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for Irade
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9.

2023 2022
AED AED
At | January 7.264,755 8.166,199
Reversal for the year (79,352) {901,444)
At 31 December 7185403 7.264,755
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9 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As of 31 December 2023, the analysis of trade receivables including those that were past due
and not impaired 15 as follows:

61-%0 S1-120 More than
Current  31-60 Days Days Days 120 Days Tutal
AL 31 December
023
Cirass receivable 84,727,633 6,447,790 4,467,335 2:952.121 17,006,475 115,601,358
Specific
provision - - - - (5,839.473) (5.839.473)
ECL rate {1.4%, 1.8%, [.2% 1. 2% T.7% 1.2%
General
provision (351,790) (30.576)  (S2,000)  (35.17%)  (BSE3N6)  (1.345.930)
Mot receivable %4375 843 6,307 214 4,415 339 2916943 10,310.616 108,415 955
61-90) 91-120 More than
Current  31-80 Days Days Days 120 Days Tatal
Al 31 December
022
Grross receivable ThATHOTO 21,045,739 218,489 547,334 17,743,549 117,734,181
Specific
provision - - - - (5,918,835  (5,91R.825)
ECL rate 1.0% 0.5% 2.1% |90 3.9% L.2%
Cieneral
Provisioen (T40,1959) (101.934) (25.610) (15,734) {462 453) (1,345,930)
Met reeeivable 76.138.5871 20,943,805 [,192.879 A3 [,600 11,362,271 110469426
10 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
2023 2022
AED AED
Cash at bank and on hand 104 416,972 115.222.950
Short term deposits 234 076,349 274,472 545
358,493 321 380,695 495
Less; shorl-term deposits with original maturity of more
than three months (239.076.349) (202,578,068)
Cash and cash equivalents 119,416,972 187.117,427

Short-term  deposits represent deposits held with financial institutions in the UAE and
denominated in AED. As at 31 December 2023, these deposits carry an interest rate of 5.35%
to 5.90% (31 December 2022: 3.30% to 5.75%) per annum,.
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10 Cash and bank balances (continued)

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between two months and one year (2022:
between three months and one year), depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Corporation and earn intercst at the respective short-term deposit rates. The fair values of short-
term deposits are equal to the carryving amount at yvear end. In 2023, interest income eamed on
short term deposits amounted o AED 12,583,078 (2022: AED 8,547,252)

11 Share capital

2023 2022
AED AED
Authorised capirtal
809,026,128 ordinary shares of AED 1 each (31
December 2022: 817,296,480 ordinary shares of AED
I each) 899,026,125 817,296 480
2023 2022
AED AED

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Opening Balance 817,296 480 T85.862,000
81,729,648 bonus shares issued for AED 1 each

(31 December 2022: 31,434,480 bonus shares issued for

AED | each) 81.729.648 31.434.480
Closing Balance 899.026,128 817.296.480

In 2023, the Corporation issued 81,729,648 (2022: 31,434 480) bonus shares to ils existing
shareholders on the basis of 10.0% (2022: 4.0%) of ordinary shares held. The bonus shares are
ordinary and carry the same rights as other ordinary shares. The legal formalities of the issuance
of the 2023 share capital were completed during April 2023 (31 December 2022; the legal
formalities of the issuance of the 2022 share capital were completed during May 2022).

12 Reserves
fa)  Statutory reserve

In line with the provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 and the
Corporation's Articles of Association, the Corporation is required to transfer annually to a
statutory reserve account an amount equivalent to 10% of its profit for the vear until such
reserve reaches 50% of the share capital of the Corporation. The statutory reserve is not
available for distribution.

fhh General reserve

The general reserve has been established to enhance the capital base ol the Corporation.
Transfers to the general reserve are made upon recommendation of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation.

fe)  Properties revaluation reserve

Properties revaluation reserve represents the net unrealised gains or losses that are recognised
on the revaluation of land.
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13 Term loans

2023 2022

AED AED
Term loan 1 2094 831,894 273,160,402
Term loan 2 T3.596,663 05,639,415
Term loan 3 3,000,000 5,000,000
Term loan 4 9,000,000 12,000,000
Term loan 5 6,000,000 2.144. 614

386,428,557

387.944.431

Less: Amount due for settlement after 12 months from
the end of reporting year (classified under non-current

liabilities) (350,749,437 (357.820.311)
Amount due for settlement within 12 months from the
end of reporting year (classified under current habilities) 35.679.120 30.115.120

The term loans comprise the following:
Term loan 1

In 2013, the Corporation obtained a loan facility from a local bank amounting to
AED 220.0 million. In 2021, the Corporation and the local bank agreed to increase the available
lacility amount to AED 320.0 million. The loan was utilised [or the construction of a new hotel,
Intercontinental Residences Abu Dhabi. Total drawdown as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
AED 294.8 million. The loan carries interest at the rate of 2.5% over 3-months EIBOR (31
December 2022: 3.5% over 3-months EBOR, subject to a minimum interest rate of 5.0% per
annum). Interest is paid on a quarterly basis. The loan is to be repaid over 9 years by 36
guarterly installments beginning from June 2024, Additional drawdown of AED 25.2 million
is available for this loan as at 31 December 2023,

The loan facility is secured by the following:

(1) Mortgage over the land plots and buildings of Abu Dhabi InterContinental Hotel and
Inter{’ontinental Residences Abu Dhabai;

(ii) Assignment of revenues of Abu Dhabi InterContinental Hotel:

(iii)  Assignment of revenues up to AED 20 million of Danat Resort — Jebel Dhanna:

(iv)  Assignment of entire revenues of the new hotel; and

(v}  Assignment of insurance in relation to the above properties.
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13 Term loans (continued)
Term loan 2

During 2015, the Corporation obtained a loan facility from a local bank amounting to
AED 600.0 million which are split into two facilities of: (i) Facility A for AED 131.6 million
which is utilised to repay two existing loans from the same local bank and (ii) Facility B for
AED 4684 million which will be utilised to repay another existing loan from the same local
bank and to meet future investment opportunities. Facility A was fully utilised as at 31
December 2015, while Facility B drawdown amounted to AED 68.4 nullion. Total drawdown
for both facilities as at 31 December 2023 amounted to AED 200.0 million. Total outstanding
loan balance for both facilities as at 31 December 2023 amounted to AED 75.4 million (31
December 2022: AED 98.3 million). Facilitics A and B carry interest at the rate of 2.5% over
J-months EIBOR (31 December 2022: Facility A carries interest at the rate of 3.0% over 3-
months EBOR, subject to a minimum interest rate of 4.25% per annum; Facility B carries
interest at the rate of 3.25% over 3-months EBOR, subject to a mimimum interest rate of 4.5%
per annum). The Facilities A and B are to be repaid in 10 years from the date of the Loan
Facility Agreement through semi-annual installments and one final payment on the final
repayment date, Interest is to be paid on quarterly basis.

The loan facility is secured by the following:

(i) Mortgage over the land plots and buildings of Abu Dhabi Intercontinental Hotel and
InterContinental Residences Abu Dhabi;

(ii) Assignment of insurances of Abu Dhabi Intercontinental Hotel and InterContinental
Residences Abu Dhabi:

(i) Assignment of receivables [rom Abu Dhabi Intercontinental Hotel, Danat Al Ain
Resorl, Danat Resort — Jebel Dhanna, Al Dhafra Beach Hotel and InterContinental
Residences Abu Dhabi: and

(iv) Pledge over bank accounts of the Corporation and its divisions, Abu Dhabi
Intercontinental Hotel, Danat Al Ain Resort, Danat Resort — Jebel Dhanna, Al Dhafia
Beach Hotel and InterContinental Residences Abu Dhabi.

In July 2017, the Corporation voluntanly cancelled part of the available facility amounting to
AED 400.0 million of the Facility B.

As at 31 December 2023, the Corporation has an unamortised loan arrangement fee of
AED L8 mullion (2022: AED 2.7 million) related to the loan and 15 netted off from the
outstanding loan balance.

In 2021. the Corporation obtained approval (o defer the payment ol four principal instalments

due from May 2020 to January 2021 until a period from May 2026 to November 2026, The
principal instalment payments due after January 2021 remamed unchanged.
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13 Term loans (continued)
Term loan 3

During 2019, the Corporation obtained a loan facility from a local bank amounting to
AED 10.0 million. The loan was for the general corporate requirements particularly for the
renovation of Al Dhatra Beach Hotel. As of 31 December 2023, the facility is fully drawdown
and the outstanding balance as of reporting date amounted to AED 3.0 million. The loan carries
interest at the rate of 2.5% over 3-months EIBOR (3] December 2022: 3.0% over 3-months
EBOR, subject to a minimum interest rate of 4.25% per annum). Interest is paid on a quarterly
basis. The loan is to be repaid over 5 vears by semi-annual installments from September 2020,

The loan facility is sccured by the same security as Term Loan | and all other related
assignments,

Term loan 4

During 2020, the Corporation obtained a lpan facility from a local bank amounting to
AED 15.0 million. The loan will be wilised for the renovation activities of Al Dhafra Beach
Hotel. As of 31 December 2023, the facility is fully drawdown and the outstanding balance as
of the reporting date amounted to AED 9.0 million. Repayment of the loan is due after 18
months from the date of initial utilisation. The loan carries interest at the rate of 2.5% over 3-
manths EIBOR (31 December 2022; 3.0% over 3-months EBOR, subject to a minimum
interest rate of 4.25% per annum). Interest is paid on a quarterly basis. The loan is to be repaid
over 5 vears by semi-annual installments from April 2022.

The loan facility is secured by the same security as Term Loan | and all other related
assignments,

Term loan 5

During 2022, the Corporation obtained a loan facility from a local bank amounting to
AED 6.0 million, The loan will be utilised for the renovation activities of the marina at Abu
Dhabi Intercontinental Holel. The total drawdown as of the reporting date amounted (o
AED 6.0 million. Repayment of the loan is due after |8 months from the date of initial
utilisation, The loan carries interest at the rate of 2.5% over 3-months EIBOR (31 December
2022: 3.0% over 3-months EBOR. subject to a minimum interest rate of 4.25% per annum).
Interest is paid on a quarterly basis. The loan is to be repaid over 5 years by semi-annual
installments from April 2024,

The loan facility is secured by the same security as Term Loan | and all other related
assignmments,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

13 Term loans (continued)

As of 31 December 2023, there was no non-compliance of financial covenants. As of 31
December 2022, the Corporation was in non-compliance of one of the covenants of Term loan
2, which constituted an event of delault as defined in the term facility agreements and the
lenders may, by notice to the Corporation. declare that all or part of utilisations and accrued
interests be immediately due and payable or payable on demand and enforce all or part of the
security provided for the loans. The Corporation obtaimed approval [rom the lender lor waiver
of the default in the covenant applicable for 31 December 2022, Accordingly, there is no
impact on classification of non-current term loans as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022.

Reconeiliation of term loan movement to the cash flows arising from financing activities is as
follows:

2023 2022

AED AED
At 1 January 387.944 43 349,132,388
Crash flows
Loans drawdown 25,526,878 65,854,796
Loans repaid (27,933,11%9) (27,933.119)
Cther non-cash items
Amortisation of transaction costs 890,367 BO0,366
At 31 December 386,428 557 387944 431
14  Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

2023 2022

AED AED
At | January 18,954,174 40 878 861
Charge for the year K.O%6,601 8.764,950
Payments during the year (17,220.025) (19.689.637)
At 31 December 30,720,750 38.954.174
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

15  Lease liabilities

The Corporation leases a land for warehouse purpose and several buildings for staff

accommodations. The average remaining lease term 15 1-7 years (2022: 1-8 years).

The movement in lease Liabilities 1s as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED
1 January 358,353 397,850
Interest expense (note 20) 19,807 22,371
Repayments (61.868) (61.868)
At 3] December 316292 358,353

The current and non-current classification of lease liabilities as of the reporting date is as

follows:
2023 2022
AED AED
Current lease liabilities 61,868 1,868
Now-currenl lease liabilities 254,424 206,485
316,292 358,353

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of cash flows during the year is as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED

Principal elements of lease payments 42.061 39497
Interest paid on lease liabilities 19 807 22371
61,868 al 868

One of premises lease in which the Corporation is the lessee contain variable lease payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from the leased stores. During the vear, the Corporation
paid AED 459,333 (2022: AED 542,367) as lease payments for the said premises. Overall, the
variable payments are not material to the Corporation’s entire lease payments and the
Corporation expects this to remain constant in future vears. The variable payments depend on
sales and consequently on the overall economic development over the next few years, Taking
into account the development of sales expected over the next 3 years, variable rent expense are

expected to continue to present a similar proportion of store sales in future vears.

(36)



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

16  Trade and other payables

2023 2022

AED ALED

Trade payables 100,118,362 119.546.753
Accrued liabilities 25.879.432 29,760,638
Retentions payable 19,074,816 35,141 818
Retail fees payable® E,009.562 B.609.562
Dividend payable 2827275 -
Due to related parties (note 17) 1,977,205 1.196.815
Deferred income 1,735,489 2,290 424
Interest payable 534,102 157,262
Other payables 16,505,395 15,075,174
177,564,641 211.787. 446

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms. Other payables
are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

Retentions payable represent amounts retained by the Corporation from third party contractors
of Intercontinental Residences Abu Dhabi project and Al Dhafra Beach Hotel,

* Retail fees payable represent amounts acerued by the Corporation for fees payable to the
Department of Culture and Tourism on sales within the Retail services division. The Corporation
is currently in discussion with the relevant eovernment authority to conclude on the due amounts.

During the year, following a directive from the Securities and Commodities Authority (“SCA”),
the Corporation has paid an amount of AED 5.7 million to SCA lor the unclaimed dividends of
the Corporation’s sharcholders as of a cutofT date as notified by the SCA, Since the Comporation
has reversed all previous vear's unclaimed dividends in the books. the Board of Directors of the
Corporation have decided to charge the “Accumulated losses™ for the amount of AED 5.7
million, which has been paid to SCA, in addition to the remaining unclaimed dividends
amounting to AED 2.8 million, hence the total charges made against the accumulated losses
amounted to AED 8.3 million, The remaining unclaimed dividends amounting to AED 2.8
million was recorded under “Trade and other payables™ in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In addition, based on the approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. the
"Cieneral Reserve™ has been released to Accumulated losses to cover the unclaimed dividends
totalling to AED 8.5 million.

17  Related parties

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into transactions at agreed terms
and conditions which are carried out on commercially agreed terms, with other business
enterprises or individuals that fall within the definition of a related party contained in
International Accounting Standard 24. Related parties comprise shareholders, directors, key
management staff and business entities in which they have the ability to control or exercise
significant influence in financial and operating decisions,

(37)



National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels
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17 Related parties (continued)
fa) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and services from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding
balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the
vear ended 31 December 2023, the Corporation has not recorded anv impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties (2022: nil). This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which related party operates.

thy  Balances with velated parties
Balances with these related parties generally anise from commercial transactions in the normal

course of business on arm’s length basis. Balances with related parties reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting date comprised;

Related party 2023 2022
relationship AED AED
Due from related parties (note 9)
Velocity Property Development LLC Joint Venture 2.319.899 -
National Transport Company LLC
(“NTC™) Joint Venture 20 394 3.036.211
Others Managed Hotels 1,769,349 2,078,119
4,118,642 5.114.330
Loan to related pariies*
National Transport Company LLC
("NTC™) Joint Venture 5.000.000 “
9,118,642 5,114,330
Due to related parties (note 16)
National Transport Company LLC
("NTC™) Joint Venture 1.825.355 1.185378
Others Managed Hotels 151.850 11.437
1,977,205 1,196,815

* The loan to NTC amounting to AED 5 million was provided by the Corporation to support
the mobilisation of projects of NTC, the loan is short term and interest free. The other
shareholder of NTC has also provided NTC with a similar amount.
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17 Related parties (continued)

fe) Transactions with related parties

Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

Directors' remuneration paid (note 23)
Payments made on behalf of a shareholder
Rental income

Other expenses charged by NTC

Payments received from a shareholder
Management fee income from managed hotels

Additional investment in Velocity Property
Development LLC

Loans provided to related parties

Key management personnel compensation
Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Number of key management personnel

There were no loans provided to directors for the vear ended 31

2023 2022
AED AED
5,757,805 10,633,380
s 622,419

48.000 24,476
6,171,819 2,675,690
2 358,321
2.977.554 3.538.466
19,229,470 15,758,349
5,000,000 :
2023 2022
AED AED
6,213,237 6,737,184
509,380 506,449
6.722.617 7,243,633
6 6

December 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

18  General and administrative expenses

2023 2022

AED AED

Payroll and employee related costs® 16,225,209 15477.004
Depreciation (note 5) K06, 7RG 1,627,445
Other operating expenses 7,811,504 4,703,147
24,843,499 21,807,596

* Payroll and employee related costs included under “Direct operating expenses” for the year
2023 amounted to AED 233.8 million (2022: AED 262.5 million}.

The fees charged by the auditor during 2023 amounted to AED 841,144 (2022: AED 422,000),
broken down to audit and non audit services as follows:

2023 022

AED AED

Audit services 506,000 422 000
Mon audil services™ 335,144 -
541,144 422 000

* Non audit services include tax and other regulatory requirements services.

The Corporation has made social contribution to the followng beneficiaries:

2023 2022

AED AED

Sheikh Khalifa Specialty Hospital - RAK - 23.210
Donation for Humanitarian Support - 25,000
- 48210

The social contributions do not exceed 2% of the average net profit of the Corporation during
the two financial year ends preceding the year of contribution,

19 Other income

2023 2022

AED AED

Management fees 2.977.558 353K 466
Dividend income 1,701,151 458,158
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (note 3) 544 54% 631,270
Other income 134,411 AU9 KTS
5,657,968 5377769
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

20 Finance costs

2023 2022

AED AED

Interest expense on term loans 19,954,552 7.142.049
Interest expense on lease liabilities 19,807 22,371
19,974,359 7.164 420

Interest was paid during the vear at rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.5% (2022: 3% to 3.5%) over
J-months EIBOR.

21  Basic and diluted earnings per share

2023 2022
Profit for the year (AED) (8,081,584 63.975.609
Weighted average number of shares in issue 899 026,128 RO0.026,128
Basic and diluted eamings per share (AED) (.08 0.07

Asgat 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Corporation has not 1ssued any instrument which would
have dilutive impact on carnings per share when converted or exercised and accordingly,
diluted earnings per share is equal o basic carnings per share,

22 Dividends and bonus shares

During 2022, cash dividend of AED 0.13 per share amounted to AED 102.16 million were
paid.

During 2023, ¥1.7 million bonus shares were proposed by the Board of Directors, and issuance
of these shares was approved in the Annual General Meeting ("AGM™) held on 17 April 2023
(2022: 31.4 million bonus shares were proposed by the Board of Directors and approved in the
AGM held on 26 April 2022).

23  Board of Directors remuneration
During 2023, the remuneration of the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounting lo AED 53.76 million was approved m the AGM held on 17 April 2023 (2022:

remuneration of the Board of Directors for the vear ended 31 December 2021 amounting to
AED 10.63 million was approved in the AGM held on 26 April 2022).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

24  Segment information
fer) Proaducts and services from which reporiable segmenis derive their revenues

Information reporied (o the Comporation™s Chiel” Executive Officer (the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM)) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is focused on nature of products or services provided. The primary segment
reporting format is determined to be operating segments as the Corporation’s risks and rates ol
retumn are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services provided. The
operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic operating unit that
ofters different products and serves different markets.

fh) Operating segments
For management purposes, the Corporation is currently organised into four major operating

segments. These segments are the basis on which the Corporation reports its primary segmental
information. These are;

. Hotels — Providing room and food and beverages services (o customers;

. Retail services — Providing beverage sales services to customers;

. Catering services — Providing catering services on a contract basis; and

. Halding — responsible for managing investments held by the Corporation, development

and management of hotels and general coordination of the Corporation’s activities.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocations and performance management. Segment
performance is measured based on profit or loss. The Corporation has only one geographical
segment — United Arab Emirates.

Information regarding these segments is presented below,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

24  Segment information (continued)

Retail Catering
Huotels services services Holding Eliminations Total
31 December 2023 AED AED AED AED AED AED
Revenue®
Timing of vevemse recognition
AL g point in time 195,013,579 49,209,384 432,984,713 - (5. 003,200} 669,204,476
Direct operating expenscs (144,544,078 ) (42.023.907) (374,819,947 - 16,172,250 (545.215.682)
Drepreciation (23.035347) {428,492 {3.906,057) - - {27,369 596)
(167579425} {42.452.359) (378, 726,004) - 16,172,250 (572,585.574)
Gross profit 27434154 6. 756,985 54 358,700 - 8160 050 D618 898
General and administrative expenses - - - (24,843, 490) - {24,843 4997
Share of results of joint ventures - - - 4774913 - 4,774,913
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - - . (6.814.767) - (6814767
MNet reversal of impairment losses on
financial assets 79,352 - - - - 79,352
Orther income®* - - 730,847 13,076,171 (8,1659,050) 3,657,908
Interest income - - 11,085 12,571,993 - 12,583,078
Finance costs - - - {(19.974.359) - {19.974,359)
Profit/(loss) for the year 27,513,506 6,756,985 55,020,641 (21.209.548) - 68,081,584
At 31 December 2023
Total assets 2,001,291 820 22.171,578 19] 438892 7L 189300 (78.217.127) 2.B47,874,553
Total liabilities 53,737 464 20,60k, M5 115412299 467,692 (48 (62,478.476) 595,030,240

* The deferred income related to contracts with costomers as of 31 December 2023 amounts to AED 1.7 million (note 16).
% Other income incluedes management fee income from Owned Hotels amounting to AED 3.2 million, which was eliminated in the consolidation process. Other
meome from managed hotels amounted o AED 3.0 million (note 19).

All the income and expenses relating to operations of the Corporation are generated/incurred in UAE and denominated in UAE Dirham.
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24  Segment information (continued)

31 December 2022

Revenue™®

Timing of reverue recognition
Ata point in time

Dirvect operating expenses

[Depreciation

Gross profit

General and administrative cxpenscs

Share of results of joint ventures

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Met reversal of impairment losses on
finangial assets

Other income™*

Interest income

Finance costs

Profit/{loss) for the year

At 31 December 2022

Total assets

Total liabilithes

Retail Catering
Hotels services services Holding Eliminations Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
160 534 006 60887 984 497,220,817 - (8,345 009) 710,597 KER
{126,736,744) (47, 753.453) (435,542.507) - 15, 715655 (597.317.049)
(24.325.388) (483,930) (3.219,489) = = {28.028.813)
(151,062,132) (48,237 380) (441.761,996) - 15,715,055 (625,345 862)
9,772,804 12,630,595 35458821 = T.36%. 746 B5,252,026
- - - (21,807,596} - (21.807,596)
- = - (2.512.956) - 12.512.956)
: % : (4,617,910 . (4.617.910)
1,444 - QOO0 - - 901 444
- - 651.270 12,096,245 {7,369, 746) 5377.769
- - - 8,547.252 - 8547252
- - - (7. 1604.420) - (7,164,420
Q774 308 12,650,595 S5T.010.09] [15.4593585) - 63975609
1488573433 28,041,132 204,522,391 1,159,683, 848 (30.564,830) 2830455 908
30659 489 30.793.444 136,600,347 485.562.261 (33.571,137) 035,044 404

* The deferred income related to contracts with customers as ol 31 December 2022 amounts to AED 2.3 million (note 16).
#* Other mcome mcludes management fee income from Owned Hotels amounting to AED 2.7 million, which was ehminated in the consolidation process. Other

income from managed hotels amounted to AED 3.5 million (note 19).

_—

All the income and expenses relating 1o operations of the Corporation are generated'incurred in UAE and denominated in UAE Dirham,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

25  Operating leases
The Corparation as lessor

The Corporation has leased outl certain units of their building premises and accounted for the
rent income. These operating leases relate to certain lease agreements with remaining terms
that range between one to three years. The lessees do not have an option to purchase the
property at the expiy of the lease penod. Future lease payments to be received by the
Corporation are as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED

Within ome vear 2.522.367 1.912,033
In the second vear 1,068,875 1.028,204
I the third year 539,548 390,373
3,650,790 3.536,702

26  Contingencies and commitments
Bank guarantees

Al 31 December 2023, the Corporation had cutstanding contingent liabilities in respect of
letters of guarantee of AED 51.5 million (2022: AED 66.2 million).

Capital commitments

AL 3] December 2023, the Corporation had estimated commitmenis for other hotel renovation
of AED 1.5 mailion (2022; AED 9.8 million).

The Courporation as lessee

The Corporation leases several buildings for staff accommodations and retail shop purposes.
The average lease term in the current year is 1 year (2022: 1 year).

There are no right of use assets nor lease liability recognised as of the reporting date in respect
of the above. given the faet that all the current lease contracts of the Corporation are short-term
leases whereas the Corporation does not have the option to renew the lease contract for fiture
periods without the consent of the lessor or the Corporation has clearly established that they
are not intending to do so. The Corporation recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease as specified in the accounting policies
of the Corporation.

The Corporation disclosed commitments related to the future aggregate mummum lease
payments under operating leases as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
No later than 1 year 6,975,612 7.300.534

27  Approval of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated [Gnancial statements were approved by the Board of Direclors and
authorised for issue on 3 March 2024
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The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels believes that the proper application of corporate
governance and corporate discipline standards will add value to its success in managing its operations.

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels was one of the first companies to react positively to the
directives of the Securities and Commaodities Authority 1o implement corporate governance regulations, This
is in recognition of the advantages offered by these regulations, which have contributed to support the
success of the Corporation in leading the change in work patterns and innovation, creativity, ensuring the
improvement of performance, continuing excellency. reducing risk, raising responsibility and wransparency,
and respecting the shareholder’s rights. The National Corporation for Tourism and Horels is committed to the
highest standards of management, deriving its values and strategy from a system that integrates ethics,
transparency, integrity, disclosure, accountability and the practices of leading and compliant companies. The
adoption of corporate governance frameworks means adopting the principles and standards set by the
Securities and Commodities Authority. Since the Corporation is fully commined 1o the application of these
controls and practices, it has sought to achieve the following:

®  Establishment of Nomination & Remuneration, Audit and Follow-up Committees.

®  Signing the independency forms by the Board of Director's members.

®  Establishment of the Internal Control Department as an independent depantment reporting directly
to the Board of Directors.
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The following documents have been developed to ensure compliance with all governance systems:
+ Corporate Governance Guide

+ Audit Committee Guide

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee Guide.

« Internal Audit and Internal Control Department Guide.

The Corporation works to provide accurate information about all its activities to the shareholders and to the
Securities and Commodities Authority immediately. The Board of Directors and the senior management of
the Corporation meet annually with the sharcholders in the General Assembly meetings. During this meeting,
the annual financial report of the Corporation shall be discussed in addition to the report of the Chairman of
the Board and discussing the agenda of the meeting. During this meeting, the shareholders and the senior
management and members of the board of directors communicate with each ather and submit propasals and
complaints regarding the business of the Corporation, The meeting is also atended by the External Auditors
of the Corparation who submit their report for the financial year ended and answer all questions submitted
by shareholders.

Since the National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels has complicd with the directives of the Securities and
Commaodities Authority to implement the corporate governance rules from the beginning, this commitment
led 1o the completion of its governance system. In 2017 the Insider’s Trading Follow-Up & Supervision
Committee was established, in addition a web page for investor relations was added to the website of the
Corporation.
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The transactions of the Board of Directors and any employees familiar with the Corporation’s basic
statements are related to the provisions and decisions of the Securities and Commodities Autharity, including
Article (14) of the Board of Directors Resolution No. (2) of 2001 regarding the system for trading, clearing,
settlement, transfer of ownership and custody of securities. On the other hand, members of the Board and
employees are prohibited from trading in the shares of the Corporation or s affiliates in short periods for
speculating on a daily basis or weekly basis, They are also prohibited from trading such shares for the purpose
of intimidating the rest of the investars and influencing the prices of the company either directly or indirectly,
And they are prohibited from trading in the shares of the Corporation when they become aware of any
important events or decisions that may affect the prices of the Corporation’s shares. in all cases, the members
of the Board of Directors, senior executives or any of the employees who are familiar with the basic data of
the Corporation shall not act on their own or through athers in securities of the Corporation during the
following periods
A Ten (10) working days prior to the announcement of any material information, unless the information
was a result of sudden or unforeseen circumstances.
B. Fifteen (15) days prior to the end of the financial quarterfy, semi-annual or annual period until the
disclosure of the financial statements.
The Board of Directors is in compliance with the above requirements regarding the restrictions required in the
trading of shares of the National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels by Directors and Employees during the
year 2023,

As for the transactions of the Board of Director’s members, their spouses and their scion in the securities of
the Company during the year 2023, there was a transaction for the chairman of the Board H.E Tareq
Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Hosani , as he purchased 5,000 shares, and Board Member Sheikh. Sultan

Muhammad Sultan Suroor Al Dhaheri also purchased 10,000 shares. The rest of the board members, thei
dabially ol dilog deayd!
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spouses, of children did not have any transactions in the Corporation’s securities, and the spouses and scion

of the members of the Board of Directors are not shareholders of the National Corporation for Tourism and

Hotels.
Mame Position/Relation | Shares owned as | Total Sell | Toral
of 31/12/2023 Purchase
1 | HE Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmied Rashed Al Hosani | Chairman 5.000 Non 5.000
2 | Wi Shaheen Bin Rubyea Al Mheiri Vice-Chairman 1977 845 Nan Non
3 | Mre. Mohamed Ahmed Al Khoun Board Member TAE9 Mo MNon
4 | Mr.Mohammed Shelaiweeh I Al Qubaisi Board Mermber 5,518 Mo Non
S | Sheikh. Sultan Mohamed Bin Sultan Bin Sorour Al | Board Mewmber 10,000 Nan 10,000
Dhahen
6 | Ms Solia Abdellaeif Lasky Board Member Non Non Man
7| MePetér Alraam Roard AMember MNon Man Moo

The majority of the Board of Directors are UAE nationals. The Board of Directors has been active in building a
strong corporate governance culture that plays an important role in defining and implementing the standards
of responsibility that enable the management 1o manage the Corporation to the best benefits for

shareholders.

The Board of Directors is subject to a schedule of its own functions and periodic meetings. It is responsible for
developing the Corporation's full strategies, the Corporation’s policy of selling and buying, approving the
capital expenditure proposals and deciding the financial Corporation’s affairs. It monitors the risks that may
face the Corporation, reviews its annual budget and monitors the work of the Corporation in implementing
that budget, and also considers the issues of the working environment and staff and the appointment of

important positions.
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1= H.E. Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Hosani:
Chairman of the Board (Independent Member).

He was appointed to the position of a member of the Board of Directors after the resignation of H.H. Sheikh
Hamdan bin Mubarak Al Nahyan from his position as Chairman of the Board of Directors. He was then
elected Chairman of the Board of Directors by unanimous vote during Board Meeting No. (4) for Session No.
(9), which was held an 08/November/ 2023. He holds a master's degree in electronics and communications
from Pierre et Marie Curie University in France and a Bachelor’s degree in Aeronautics from Saint Louis
University in the USA. He is also the holder of an Accelerated Executive Development Diploma from IMD
Business School, Switzerland.

He holds the position of Secretary-General of the Tawazun Council. the government authority responsible for
acquisition management, industrial development and the setting of regulations standards and governance for
the defense and security industry.

He started his career as an officer in the UAE Armied Forces, where he progressed in the ranks. He then took
on the role of Deputy Director General for the National Electronic Secunity Autharity (NESA). He also held the
position of Associate Director at Mubadala Investment Company and CEQ of Al Yah Satellite
Communications Company (Yahsat), before becoming the CEO Tawarun Council,

He holds a number of governance positions in the Defense, Security, Lducation and Aviation sectors, where
he currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bayanat and Tawazun Technology and
Innovation (TT1), and as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Al Forsan Holding Company and Yahsat.
He is a member of Royal jet and Rabdan Academy Boards.

His Excellency Tarig Al Hosani previously served as Chairman of Global Aerospace Logistics (GAL), Vice
Folaaity Lale ol Lilaglt L i)
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NCTsH

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Abu Dhabi Health Services Company (SEHA), and a member of the
Board of Directors of several entities, such as the Emirates Space Agency, EDGE Group, Emirates Defense
Industries Company (EDIC), National Health Insurance Company (Daman), Higher Colleges of Technology
and Abu Dhabi Airparts Company (ADAC),

Vice-Chairman {non-executive member)

He has a BA degree in Business Communications Technology from Staffordshire University, UK. He is
currently the Director of the Rubaya Group and is the Managing Director of the Abu Dhabi Electromechanical
Company.

3- M. Mohammed Ahmed Al-Khoori:
Member of the Board of Directors (non-executive member).

He has a BA degree of Finance and Banking from Staffordshire University in the UK, has served as Assistant
Chairman and Director of Business Development at Khalidiya International Holding. He is currently the
General Manager of HH Sheikh Saeed bin Hamdan Al Nahyan's Office and as the General Manager of the
First Emirates Group for Technology and Trade 10 manage the investments of HH Sheikh Saeed Bin Hamdan
Al Nahyan, and he is also a partner and Chairman of Emirates First Air Group.

Member of the Board of Directors (Independent Member).

He holds a BA degree of Arts in Business Administration from the University of La Verne, California in 1987.
He served as the Assistant General Manager- Admin in GASCO, He also served as the Director of HR &
Administration in ADNOC. He is currently the Director of Human Resources at ADNOC. He is also an active
Board Member of Abu Dhabi Sport Council, National Qualifications Authority, Abu Dhabi University, Abu

Dhabi Tawteen Council, Abu Dhabi Pension Fund and the Emirates Red Em:gml, Ll 13l 3 Y
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Member of the Board of Directors (Independent Member),

He holds several positions, as he works for Al Dhaheri Group LLC - Abu Dhabi in the financial and
administrative department. He also works for Abu Dhabi Beverages Company Limited LLC - Abu Dhabi in the
Department of Financial and Administrative Affairs, and works also for Bin Surour Holding Company LLC. -
Abu Dhabi in the financial and administeative department, and he also participates in the management of the

fimilj'! financial business.

Member of the Board of Directors (Independent Member).

She holds & BA Degree in management information technology from the United Kingdom. Sofia brings
considerable experience in asset management, mergers, and acquisitions, private equity, portfolio
management, altemative investments, funds, valuation, financing, capital markets and corporate structuring
through her 17- years tenure at Royal Group.

She has overseen the acquisition of numerous companies in a variety of core industries, induding real estate,
contracting, food processing, preventive healthcare, and capital investments. Her contribution towards the
growth of companies within the Royal Group has been invaluable. She holds a position on the Board of
Directors of a number of companies.

7- My, Peter Abraam

Member of the Board of Directors (Independent Member).

Peter is a leader with over 25 years of international business experience, a proven reputation for strategic
planning, delivering major project initiatives and increasing stakeholder value. In Jan 2020, he was appointed
as Chief Strategy and Growth officer of Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange Listed Intermational Helding Company . He
was also appointed as Chairman of the Arena Events Group, In 2017 he was recruited as Group Executive
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Advisor for Findex. He also worked for 10 years as Executive Director of the Royal Group in Abu Dhabi. He
was working in Australia since the year 1995.

Peter has been a Board of Divector of 4 number of leading institutions engaged in financial, commercial and
philanthropic based activities.

B. Names ol resigned board member

1= HH Sheikh Hamdan bin Mubarak Al Nahyan:

Chairman of the Board (non-executive member)

H.H Sheikh Hamdan bin Mubarak Al Nahyan resigned from his position as Chairman of the Board of
Directors on 31/August/2023.

Membership Duration of each of the current Board of Director's Members:

No. | Name Pasition Membership | The entiy represented by the BOD
Dusration miember

1 | HE Taroq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Chainman 2023 Representing hirnself by
Hosani appaintment

2 | Mr.Shaheen bin Rubayea Al-Mheid Vice-Chairman | 2011 Representing himsell by elecsion

3 | M Mobammed Amed Al-Khoon Board Member | 2014 Hepresenting himsell by election

4 | Mr.Mohammed Shelaiweeh K. Al Qubaisi Board Member | 2020 Representing hamsell by election

5 | Sheikh Sultan Mohamed Bin Sulan Bin Sorour | Board Member | 2023 Rispresenting himself by election
Al Dhaberi

6| Ms Sofia Abdellanif Lasky Board Member | 2023 Representing himaself by election

7 | MrPeter Abraam Board Member | 2023 Regeesenting himsell by election

e
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C. Astatement of woman's representation in the Board of Directors (80D) in 2023
With regard to woman's representation on the board of directors of the National Corporation for Tourism and
Hotels, Ms. Sofia Abdellatf Lasky was nominated for the membership in the Board of Directors and was

elected by the shareholders as a member of the Corporation’s Board of Directors, and now she represents the
female companent of the Board during the current session (the ninth session).

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors is determined by the shareholders of the General
assembly of the Corporation in accordance with the SCA Board of Directors Decision No. (7/CH) of 2016
concerning the standards of Intuitional Discipline and Governance of Public Joint Stock Companies as
amended and the Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 conceming commercial companies, such
remunerations constitute of percentage of the net profit. The Corporation may alse pay additional expenses,
fees or monthly <alary to the extent determined by the Board of Directors for any of its members if such
member is a member of a committee, perform special efforts or do additional works for the Corporation
beyond his/her regular duties as a member of the Board of Directors, and in all cases, the Board of Directors
remuneration shall not exceed 10% of the net profit after deducting depreciation and reserve.

5 " ’ "
1. 0| emuneration paid Lo the members of Lhe Boarg of Lhreciors Tor Ehe year U

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors for the financial year 2022 amounted 1w AED
5757 805 (Five Million Seven Hundred and Fifty Seven Thousand and Eight Hundred and Five), which was
approved by the shareholders during the General Assembly Meeting,

esenied ey alill sldl ASSEIMINY 1 (AT

ilion and Five Hundred Thousand) was proposed, and the proposal
will be presented to the shareholders at the nmﬂﬁMinrnppmmlufqtruqnu
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RO members (or the fie i iF

In respect 1o the remuneration and allowances of the members of the Board of Directors for attending the
Board of Directors meetings and the committees emanating from the Board, members of the Board of
Directors in the past o in the present do not receive any remuneration or allowances for auending such
meetings.

i
e AP LA CCMTITTIIR > g3 FRES

As for the detalls of the allowances, salaries, or additional fees that a member of the board of directors
received other than the committee antendance allowances, the corporation’s BOD members do not receive
any additional allawances, salaries, or fees for their work as members of the board of directors.

The Board of Directors of the National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels held (7) meetings during the year
2023

Meeting No. | Meeting Date Number of Attendees Number of Attendees by proxy

MeetingNo. 1 | 30/anuary/2023 6 Members M. Talal Yousil Al sawadl

Meeting No. 2 15/Mairch/2023 Al Membees

MeetingNo.3 | 10/May/2023 All Members -

Miseting No. 4 31/july/2023 6 Members HH.  Sheikh  Hamdan  Bin
Mubarak Al Nahyan

MeetingNe. S | 21/September/2023 B Members M. Peter Abiraam

MeetingNo. 6 | 0l/November/2023 All Members

MeetingNo.7 | 20/Cecember/2023 ANl Members -

Considering that the absent members issue a proxy 1o one of the attendee members to represent them
and vote in their name when needed.
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During the year 2023, there was one board of directors’ resolution issued by passing, which was Resolution
No. 1/of 2023 issued on 28/09/2023 10 appoint H.E Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Hosani as a
member of the Board of Directors, and the decision was approved unanimously by the members of the Board.

Fourth : Board Committees
1/ Audit Committee

* Mr. Shaheen Bin Rubayea Al Mheirt, Audit Commitiee Chalrman, acknowledges his responsibiliy for the

committee system at the Corporation, review of its work mechanism and envuring its effectiveness.

Based on the proposal submitted 10 the Board of Directors of the Corporation, the Board in its resolution
1/8/4. decided at its meeting on 03/03/2010 to form the Audit Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance. The current members of the Audit Commitee are:

Mz Shaheen bin Rubayea Al Mheiri Chairman

Mr. Mohammed Ahmed Al-Khoori Member

Ms. Sofia Abdellatif Lasky Member

The members of the Audit Committee have extensive experience and expertise in financial, accounting and
auditing matters.

The duties of the Audit Committee include:

1. To develop and implement the contracting policy with the External Auditor and submit a report to the
Board of Directors specifying the important issues to take action with and 1o make recommendations on
the steps to be taken

2. The Follow-up and the Independency of the External Auditor and the extent of its objectivity and

discussion on the nature and of the audit and its effectiveness in accor with the
' B P B £ D LA LSRR
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3. To Monitor the integrity of the Corporation’s financial statements and reports (annual, und—?@_{& H
quarterly) and review them as part of its normal work during the year.

4. To Review the internal control and financial control systems and risk management at the Corporation.

5. Reviewing the External Auditor’s letter and its work plan and any material questions raised by the auditor
on management regarding the accounting records, financial accounts or control systems and their
response and approval.

6. Establish rules thar enable the employees of the Corporation to report any possible violations of financial
reports or internal control or other in confidential way and steps to ensure independent and fair
investigations af such violations.

7. To monitor the extent to which the Corparation complies with the rules of professional conduct.

B. To discuss the intemal control system with the administration and ensure that it fulfills its duty 1o
establish an effective internal control system.

During the year 2023 (5) Audit Committee meetings were held 1o discuss all maters relared 1o the financial

statements and all matters related to the work of this committee. The dates of these meetings were as follows:

Meeting | Meeting Date Number of present members Number of absent members
MNo.

1 03/March/2023 All members -

2 14/March/2023 All members -

3 09/May/2023 All Members -

4 31/ July/2023 Alleneembers

5 31 /Ocrober/2023 All members

It shall be noted that in the case of absence of a member, he shall prepare a POA for one of the presem

members of the committee to represent him.

* Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Al Khoori Nomination & Remuneration Commitntee Chairman acknowdedges his
mpmﬂlhiﬂcy for the commiitee system at the Corporation, review of its work mechardse and ensuring is

effectiveness.
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The main purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to define policies and criteria for
nomination to the Board of Directoss, periodic review of the needs and skills required in the Board,
preparation of HR policies, training, succession planning, career replacements, appointments and termination
of services, ensuring the independency of independent members, and conflict of interest in the Management
of other companies as well as the development of compensatory and compensation policies for Board
members and senior executives in addition to other matters referred 1o the Committee by the Board of
Directors. The Nominations and Remuneration Committee consist of:

Mr. Mohammed Ahmed Al-Khoon Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Shelaiweeh K. Al Qubaisi Member
Mr. Mr. Perer Abraam Member

During the year 2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once on 21/December/2023 in the

presence of all members.

* Mr. Mohammed Shelaiweeh K. Al Qubaisi Insider’s Trading Follow-Up & Supervision Committee Chairman
acknowdedges his responsibility for the committee system at the Corparation, review of its work mechanism
and ensuring its effectivencss.

The current members of the Committee are:

Mr. Mohammed Shelaiweeh K Al Qubatsi Chairman
Sheikh, Sultan Mohamed Bin Sorour Al Dhaheri Member
Mr. M. Peter Abraam Member

During the year 2023, the Insiders wrading Follow-up & Supervision Committee called for a meeting which
was scheduled on 20/December/2023 but the quorum was not reached to hold the meeting on that date, and
another meeting will be called as soon as possible.
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1. Determine the permanent insiders of the Corporation who are the members of the Board of Directors,

executive management, persons who are familiar with the company’s information permanently and
temporarily.

Follow up and supervision of the insider trading and ownership and keep their record.

. Prepare a special and integrated register for all persons who are permanently or temporarily informed

and whao are entitled to or have access to the company's internal information prior 1o publication.

. Preserving the record of the prior and subsequent disclosures of the insiders and the monthly monitoring

of insiders” balances.

. ToNotify insiders with the required contrals and legal responsibiliy.

Provide all insiders with all notifications of ban periods.

_ Reporting 1o Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange and the Securities and Commodities Authority in case of
violation of the wading policy requirements by insiders.

The Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange (ADX) and the Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA) have been
provided with a list of the names of the board members and the insiders.

The list of insiders on the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange website has been updated,

All insiders have been informed about the controls relating to natural and legal insider and the legal
responsibility resulting from the breaching of the confidentiality of the information,

The Intermal Control Depantment and the Board of Directors Secretary have been followed about the
notification of the insiders about the terms of the ban, as it has been confirmed to address that the
Chairman and the BOD members and all insider employees were notified in relation to the ban on
trading of the Corparation’s securities until disclosure of the financial statements.
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The Board of Directors of the Corporation has not delegated any of its members or the executive

management to perform any of its Tasks or Functions. Rather, the Board worked in an integrated manner

throughout the period.

National Transpan Company LLC“NIC” Trarspon Servioe S0%
“Joint Vermue"

Velocity Properties Development LL( Real Estate 63.862%
“loint Venmure™

* The Cotporation’s origiaal shares ownership was 60 12% and increased to 63 56% effective ownership after addiional capital
comrtration. The legal procedures for the increase in acnial awnership have ot yet heen completed

In respect of related party wansactions during 2023, as follows:

2023 (AED) 2022 (AED)
Ducliom a related party
Mational Transpen Company LLCNTC 5029394 31036211
Velocity Properties Development LLC 2.319.899 0
Dueto o selaed pany
Natlonal Transport Company LL.CNTC” 1,825,355 1,485,378
Velocity Properties Development LLC 1] 0
Mathaeal Corpocation fioe Tounsm and Hotels
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Plclosues: and Conflicts of Interest: N}&H

To ensure commitment to the legal framework and transparency, the Board of Directors comply with the
following;

1. Disclose all other memberships and seek a permit from the Board of Directors for any new

membership on the boards of directors of companies.

2. Disclosure of all business activities that are directly or indirectly related 1o the business of the
Corporation.
Disclosure of substantial interests for the BOD member to which the Corporation is a pany.
Not to participate or to seek any decision that may cause conflicts of interest.
BOD members shall not offer or accept bribes, gifts or gratuities that may affect decisions.
Notifying the Board of Directors of any activities with a competitor or other parties which may be a

- S T S

cause of conflict of interest.
The Corporation discloses to the shareholders the material transactions with the subsidiaries of the
shareholders or members of the Board of Directors and trades on the shares of the Corporation by the
members of the Board of Directors and senior executives,

CEO of National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels reports to the Board of Directors. His

responsibilities include maintaining and expanding the Corporation that owns the “Danat” brand as well

as owning several hotels in Abu Dhabi and Al Ain, developing the Catering Division, Central Purchasing

Division and any short and long-term investment opportunities. The CEO also oversees the

development of several projects under construction including luxury hotels, resorts, shops, restaurants

and accommodation for employees. He is responsible for the presentation of the Corporation and the
5LEaN Rn el Lol
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expansion of its activities inside and outside the borders of the UAE in the evert of real investment
opportunities.

The CEQ also cooperates with the Board of Directors to identify and clarify the vision of the Corporation
and develop strategies to achieve this vision. He also monitors the evolution of strategies to ensure the
long-term financial integrity of the Corporation as well as its responsibility for managing the
Corporation’s opetations and ensuring compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements,
Procedures, programs and new directions of the Corperation.

The CEO is also responsible for marketing all the products of the Corporation and its services in order to
get a bigger share in the market, in addition of developing new markets and retain the competitive
position of the Corporation in the industry. He is involved ditectly in the general development of the
Corporation in the business fields. The CEQ has the knowledge and experience in all main areas of the
Corporation’s business including financial management, catering, hotels” management, development of
business, human resources and projects and he deals with consultancy firms and contractors. He is fully
capable 1o manage such areas of business.

The Chief Executive Officer is keen to continue the Corporation and its mission, programs and services
in a strong and positive form.

> Mslane Sotelo

The Director of Finance from November 2018 of the Corporation, reporting to the Chief Executive
Officer. Among her duties, the financial stavements preparation in accordance with the Corporation’s
policies, while ensuring the accuracy and speed of preparation, She also develops an accounting team to
ensure the preparation of payroll, accounts payable and accounts receivable in addition to the functions
overseeing the efficiency of cash management. Her duties also are to assist in the internal and external

audit functions while ensuring that it remains consistent with the statutory and legal requirements of
Gobially dale ol 3 byt Loyl
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the Corporation. One of the tasks entrusted 1 her is to ensure the internal control measures are in place
to achieve and comply with all the requirements of govemance. In addition, she carries out all the tasks

entrusted to her by the Chief Executive Officer. She holds the position of financial Department
consultant since 01/October,2023.

> Mr. Rajiv Saxena

The Corporation Internal Control Department's Manager and the Compliance Officer as well, he is
reporting to the Audit Committee and to the Chairman and the members of the Board of Directors. He is
responsible for the design. management and planning of the audit process of the Corporation, as well as
the preparation of the Corporation’s policy and procedures manual and its implementation, as well as
the risk analysis facing the Corporation. This analysis is conducted under management’s supervision as
required, in addition to its responsibility for the development and management of Internal Audit plans
and coardination with External Auditors. He also undertakes to ensure the implementation of all policies
related to the implementation of corporate governance regulations, issuance of periodic reports on the
Support Services Section and its compliance with the Corporation's policies. In addition to supervising,
using and maintaining all documents, records and financial data in accordance with the policies and
regulations of the Corporations, as well as all the tasks entrusted 1o the Director of the Internal Control
department.

¢ M Fawaz Chaarani:

Acting Director of Retail Division Operations, appointed on 01/November,2022, reports directly 1o the
CEO. He is responsible for developing this Division in the Corporation by opening sales outless,
managing and developing the brand, marketing and all promotional activities. He also holds the position
of Director Human resources management in the Corporation.

National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels
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s Mrs Nicola Hochgruber

Director of the hotel division reponts directly 1o the Chief Executive Officer (Start working in the
Corporation in October 2018), Her job is to follow up the work of all the Corporation’s hotels and to
make sure that all these hotels are effective and profitable and to increase their economic value and
ensure that all services and products are in line with the required expectations. Mr. Khaled Kamal £l
Sharabassy was appointed to succeed Mrs. Nicola on 18/12/2023,

& Mr Murtadha Hassan Hamed

The Leg.ll Advisor, appointed on21/December/2021 reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for providing counsel on all legal matters, drafting legal opinions, memoranda, and briefing
documents, responsible for all litigation and disputes, investigate legal claims and complaints by or
against the company, conduct interviews, prepare reports and/or opinions based on findings to ensure
that top management is made aware of all aspects of the legal claims and complaints and associated risk.
coordinate with concerned depariments and ather parties in evaluation of potential litigation: develop
recommendations for appropriate proceeding including prosecution, dismissal or senlement of such
litigations, based upon Company's policy, monitor the legal and regulatory environment. including
changes 1o laws & regulations that may affect operations of the company or any part of it and
proactively advise, prepare and review contracts of establishment, Share Transfer Agreements, Power of
Attorney, Shareholders’ Resolutions, and other corporation documents.
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Detailed Statement
Date of Total Salaries & | Total Bonuses
Name Positions . oliowances pald | accrued In 2023
of In 2023 (AED)*"* | [AED)

Mr. Marwy Farag Chief Executive Officer 01-01-10 3,287,174 156,000

i baad i 110619 933,216 156,000
Finance & Commercial

Mr. Xanan Govinda Director - CSD 2-02-13 nase 205,000
Ditector of  Hotels

Mrs. Nicols Hoehgrubet Operation D1-a0:% b 9

Skt i abile Director of Finance 01-01-15 557,405 0
Project  Development

Mr, Amin Abdelahman Fahmy | Director 020120 146,951 0

Mr, Murtadha Hassan Hamad Legal Advisor 211221 573,208 20,000
Corporate Director of _

M. Fawae Chaarani Operations- HR, Retall oL1-07-20 445,120 25,000
& Teanaportation

Mr. Ebrshim  Suitan  Ebeshim | POOI Belueion 030808 536,956 18,620

Almarroogi Manager

My, Saleh Mohamed Al Habishi IT Manages 05-05-02 426,519 15,900

Me. Rajiv Saxena Internal Audia Manager 030121 417,123 18,000

Me, Mohamed Ahmed Elbaliemy | pirector & 08-05-23 379,193 16,953
Director  of  Hotel

M. Khaled Kamal Elharabasty Operation 18-12-23 29,431 0

M. Ronnel Cruz Mag 1sa Chief Accountant 01/01/2016 22,061 11,500

* Thete are no other cash o in-kind bonuses payabile i 4emior executives of the Comporation other than e abave menioned bomses.
% Inchaded end of sendee benelin.
=% Noges:
® i, Ay Abwdelrahman Faby Las wiorsng Day 31/08/202.3
® s Ninla Hochgruber Last Warking Day 30/09/2023
® M Khaled Karmal Elharabasey was spposnted to the pesssion of Direcior of Hotel Depastasent Operations an TR12/2021
daliafly Lol Uil el
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Pt npliad MY e
SAVEF 8 WA B oA Y 1““...

Page 21 of 34 ) mnummuuhuni
}I/ T UMY 3400 0P B 4971 2800 P00

£ infofircthse W e rxth com f



((7'

Managing the Corporation’s business and providing guidance 1o the executive body in line with the
Corporation’s objectives strategic and palicies prescribed by the Board of Directors and the provisions of the
law, and the provisions of other legislation related to the work of the Corporation and its activities.

1- Provide the Board of Directors with accurate periodic repornis on the financial position of the
Corporation and its work and the procedures taken to manage the risks and the inernal control
system, that is to enable the Board of Directors to review the objectives, plans and policies set
and 1o check the executive management’s performance.

2- Provide the Board of Directors members with any necessary information and documents for the
BOD meetings at an appropriate time.

3- Make recommendations regarding any proposals that it deems necessary regarding the
Corporation business.

4- Provide the regulatory bodies (Ministry of Economy - Securities and Commodities Authority -
Abu Dhabi Securities Marker and others) with any informarion, data and documents required in
accordance with the provisions of the law and the regulations, instructions and decisions issued
pursuant to any of them.

During the year 2023, the Board of Directors has not authorized any of the executive management (o carry
out any of the Board's functions.

Seventh : Bxernal Auditor

The external audit firm is completely independent of thie Corporation and its board of directors. It performs
the audit work, verifying the validity of the financial statements and monitoring the Corporation accounts for
the fiscal year in which it was appointed. In order to perform its functions, the External Audit Firm has the

right to access all the Corporation hooks and its records and documents. And may verify the Corporation
assets and liabilities.
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Price Waterhouse Coopers PWC Firm has been appointed as the Corporation’s external audit according to the

selection of the Corporation shareholders. the appointment was in the AGM which was held on 17/April
/2023, Price Waterhouse Coopers PWC is an auditing firm registered with the Ministry of Economy in the
register of auditors, and it is one of the largest professional audit services companies in UAE.

Afee of AED 85,000 has been charged for the audit of the annual financial statements of the head office and
AED 96,000 for the quarterly audit and AED 301,000 for the audit of the hotels, central purchasing and other

Divisions excluding any financial statement translation charges.

1| Maene of the Audising Fiem Price Waterhouse Coopers PWU

2 | Nume of the Parner Audisos M. Rami Sarlan

3| Numibser of years verved as an Extermal Awditor for the NCTH Theee Year

4 | Number of years the panmer avditor spent siditing the | Theee Years
CINTIPRIFTY S OIS

5 Total Fees for anding the mancial stasersents of the year 2023 | 482000

(in ASDY)

The Dieraids and nacure of other service privided

Services related 1o tansfering amounts of the unclaimed
dividends before March 2015 and report on government
fees on rerail sales, in addition 10 wax consubing sendoe.

Total Fees and Coss of the special service ocher than the
auiiSting of the Financial Seaterent in 20230 ALD)

105744

A statement of the ather services performed by a0 Pxternal
Adiditor cthied than the Compbration”s auditon in 2023

During the year 2023 there were no reservations made by the Corporation’s External Audicor.

o
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Eighth: Internal Control Department

The Corporation Internal Control Department has been established based on decision No. 3/2010 dated
24/08/2010 issued by the Board of Directors, the department is currently chaired by the Mr. Rajiv Saxena,
who holds an MBA from MeGill University in Montreal, Canada. He is also Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
and Cenified Management Accountant (CMA) from the United States of America. He is the current
Compliance Officer of the Corporation since 03/01/2021, in compliance with the corporate Governance
Regulations, where he reports directly to the Board of Directors. The Corporation’s Board of Directors
acknowledge and claimed responsibility for the Intermal Control Depantment activities, as the Board of
Directors is supervising the Internal Control system as detailed as in the Corporate Governance Manual. This
department warks to assess the Corparation risk management procedures, to fully implement the governance
rules, and to verify the commitment of the Corporation and its employees to the provisions of the laws,
regulations and decisions in force, and internal policies and procedures. The Internal Contral Department
reviews the data presented 1o the Corporation's senior management, which is used in the preparation of
financial statements. The Internal Control depariment’s duty is mainly in the management of risks and the
proper application of the governance rules in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The National
Corporation for Tourism and Hotels follows the internal control management system and the procedures it
has undertaken to review its activities, including;

A) To supervise the internal audit activities and 10 ensure that the strategic directives of management are

consistently implemented.
B) To conduct continuous and systematic evaluation and 1o ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of risk
management procedures and processes and corporate governance.
€) To set and develop models for risk assessment, allocation of audit resources, development, management

and direction of internal audit programs within the scope of the internal control authority and
Gl ially Ao laald yilaghl dce !

WB“L“"UM- Mational Carporation for Touriam and Holels

2 ] Y e
F U T LI L WL P T s

e Mectsh \ PO lhos 6742, Ala Chale, UAE

[ 470 200 999% F V37 200 90
| by Bimhe s W v ATh o

pom



A\ _
N)(}_&H

D) To report to the management on the results of intermal control or any analysis, assessment or guidance on
the activities being reviewed.

E) Toadvise on risk management and the procedures 1o solve these risks.

F) To coordinate with other departments in the Corporation to ensure its unification of the plans, programs
and procedures.

G) Toqualify and train skilled auditors 1o perform the required activities,

H) To ldentify and assess risk areas for the preparation of the annual audit plan.

1) Toguide and control the Corporation performance and financial audit projects, and the commitment and
compliance of the Corporation to systems and analysis.

I} Toreceive complaints and allegation’s reports.

K) To search for modemn auditing tools and practices, and 1o pursue professional development
opportunities, including internal and external training and membership of the professional association, as
well as sharing information with the concerned staff for the purpose of increasing the expertise of the
Internal Control Department.

ANl Internal Control Department reports shall be sent to the Board of Directors of the Corporation to

strengthen the system and activate it 1w comply with the decision of the Chairman of the Securities &

Commodities Authority Ne. (3/ RM) for 2020 on the Corporate Governance Manual. The mechanism of the

Internal Control system is to report to the Board of Directars to include:

1. Comprehensive assessment and documentation of the various risks facing the Corporation.

2. Prepare arecord of risks and what happens annually.

3. Develop an audit plan based on the above risk record.

4. Continued development of corporate governance structure in the Corporation and ensure proper
implementation of it.

During the year 2023, the Internal Control Depantment issued (18) reports to the Corporation’s Board of

Directors, the details of which are anached 1o this report Selially ol dd Ll Laeyll
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The Corporation already has policies and procedures for all the Hotel Division as well as the Corporation
Head Office, and these policies have been approved by the Board. All policies and procedures are periodically
updated taking into account all changes taking place in the world. It has been implemented an organizational
chart for employees with a clear definition of their powers and responsibilities, and there is a code of condua
for all employees as there are annual performance evaluation being to determine the performance of staff.

Regarding how the Internal Control Depantment deal with any major problems, the Corporation since its
inception did not face any major problems, and the Internal Control Department shall take all preventive
measures for areas of major risk, such as cash, banks and other operational areas and performs periodic
review of all departments and take action accordingly to prevent any problems. If there is any problem, the

Internal Control Department is well qualified to deal with any issue directly and take the necessary action 1o
resolve the problem,

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels is in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations in the
United Arab Emirates. During the fiscal year 2023, the Corporation has not been subject to any penalties or
restrictions either by the Securities and Commodities Authority or any other regulatory body.

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels and its employees are proud of the positive impact they

have on many levels in the areas where they work and live, and they prioritize this impact in all their activities
in local communities on which they depend for the operational mission's support, the purpose is always to
give adequate consideration to social issues when planning and implementing projects and programs that the
Corporation is working on. Working together to bring about positive change, build strong relationships in the

community and reduce the environmental footprint caused by the activities of ies I agpas
;4 P y daﬂﬂwmﬁ.ﬂw
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of work lead to providing motivation to engage the community in the company.

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels believes that it can have a significant impact on the local
commimity. The Corporation suppors local and regional care, as well as many non-profit humanitarian
organizations working together towards a common goal, which builds strong relationships. A variety of
reasons support the company - based on the individual needs of the community - the National Corporation
for Tourism and Hotels focuses on activities, projects and organizations that will produce tangible and
positive results, especially in the field of environment, health and leisure activities, and the Corporation will
demonstrate a firm commitment for humanitarian reasons that fall outside the core areas of work through
time and money donations or private resources, which are carried out by the Corporation on a regular basis.

During the year 2023, the Carporation provided financial support to some individuals, but did not provide
cash or in-kind contributions to humanitarian arganizations.

Month Lowest price (AED) Highest prica (AED) Closing price
(AED)
lanuary 2.58 amn .78
Fobruary 2.55 2.90 265
Maorch 250 2.88 258
Aprid 2.66 .39 262
My 2.58 415 o
Jur@ 2.90 3.30 2.94
July 2.83 056 %10
Augiint 2.95 .50 3.00
Septomber 3.00 3.30 314
Ootobisr 2.7 3.4 2.86
Nowesmbor 2.76 3.00 288
Decembaor 2.28 2.88 2.36
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It is no secret that the world in general and the Middle East in particular have suffered great sacial

and economic changes. The tourism and hotel sector are one of the most important sectors affected
by these changes, since it is directly dependent on security, stability and safety of movement and
aviation. It also depends on the availability of liquidity among individuals, organizations and
companies, and on business prosperity and ¢conomic activity.

0.29%

Arab 0.07%
Foreign 0.05% 0.07% 0.12%
Tatal 43,38% 56.684% - 100.00%
DI
No. | Name Number of Share | % Of Shares Held
Held of Capltal
1 Alpha Dhabi Partners Holdhg_ﬂn. LLC 327,196,668 36,39
2 Mohamad Abdul Aziz Al Muhairi 124,614,123 13.86
3 Shaikh Mohamed Bin Sultan Sorous Al Dhair | 73,150,000 8.14
4 Petroloum Engineering & Construction Est. | 56,116,347 6.24
{Pacon)
5 | Ghobash Trading Investment Company Lid | 49,828,742 5.54
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No. | Share(s) Owned Number of Number of Share | % Of Share
Shareholders | Held Held of the

Capltal

1 Less than 50,000 567 10,063,273 1.12

2 From 50,000 to less than 500.000 376 82,183,184 10.25

3 From S00000 to less than | 31 53,560,211 5.96

5,000,000
4 | More than 5,000,000 13 743,229,460 B2.67
5 987 899,026,128 100.00

F. AStatement of the procedure taken with respect to the Investors” Relation
The Corporation has taken all the necessary measures regarding investor relations contrals. A special page for
investor relations has been established on the website of the Corporation. Mrs. Nasreen Abdulrahman
Khalifa was chosen as the investor relations officer of the Corporation and the following contact details:

Phone number: +971 2 409 9766
Fax number; +971 2 490 9990
Mobile number; 4971553900930

Ernail: Nasrin khalifa@nethoae

The Corparation website also has been updated so that any information and data that are disclosed or any
other information relating o the company and the rights of shareholders can be published, such as the
annually and quarterly financial statements, the Board of Director's formation, Governance Reports and the
AGM minutes are on the Corporation’s web site www.ncth.com Page of the Investor Relation.

The General Assembly of the Corporation met during the year 2023 on April 17, 2023, and the special

. ; ; : bty L) duile gl Al
resolutions that were presented to this meeting were as follows: Nutional Corponvicn for Tousien and Hotels
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The decision regarding the approval of the bank facilities provided by Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank (ADCB) in
the amount of AED 6.0 million for the purpose of the marina renovation work at the InterContinental Hotel
Abu Dhabi, which will be repaid in 10 semi-annual installments. The aforementioned item was approved by
92.67% of the shares present,

H. The Rapporteur of the Board Mectings

The Rapporteur of the Board Meetings is Mr. Hany Farag, He has been appointed 1o this position at the BOD
Meeting No. Seven of session No. Four which was held on March 03, 2010. Mr. Farag is a certified public
accountant with more than 4 decades of experience in every facer of the hospitality and hotels industry. He
has well defined knowledge and skill in area Board governance: palicy, finance, project and personnel, Fosters
positive working relations with Board Members and participates in the discussions and the deliberations of
the Board.

The Duties During the Yean:

®  Maintaining and managing company files (founding contracy, regulations, meeting minutes, mornthly
and annual reports . etc)

®  Suppart the Chairman of the Board in all aspects of his duties and responsibilities in the arganization,

®  Prepare the agenda for Board and General Assembly meetings.

® Informing the members of the board of directors with the dates of the board and general assembly
meetings and providing them with the necessary documents at least one week before the meeting,

® Reminding the members of the Board of Directors of the dates of the periodic meetings and the new
information.

®  Create the meeting place with the necessary equipment.
® Record the discussion and decisions of the board of directors ‘meetings. prepare the minutes of the

meeting and present them to the members before approving it in the wuﬁh Al Ayl
32 3
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® Coordinate the meetings of the commitiees emanating from the Board of Directors and coordinate
with the chairmen and members of those committees to prepare their minutes and present their
recommendations and decisions to the Council.

®  Providing legal advice and support in the areas of labor law, corporate law, contract law and
intellectual property, to the extent required by the board of directors, and during a board meeting
and ordinary general assembly,

® Carrying out any other tasks assigoed to it by the members of the Board of Directors.

The significant events that ok place during the year 2023 are the contract with the UAE University in Al Ain
1o implement catering and services contracts, and the appointment of the new director for the Hotels
Department.

The Corporation did not make any wansactions equal to 5% or more of the company's capital with related
parties during the year 2023,

K. AStatement of the Emiratization percen n 2021,2022 & 20
In 2021 the Emiratization rate in the Corporation’s head office reached 6%, and in 2022 it was also 6%, and
by the end of the year 2023 the rate became 5%.

During the year 2023, the InterContinental Residence Abu Dhabi Hotel was opened with its wonderful views,
and many of the aparements in it have already been occupied, Jones the Social Restaurant is expected to open
as an addition to this hotel and ro meet the needs of the guests.
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The Corporation continued to carry out maintenance and renovation work for its hotels to maintain the level
of services provided to guests. Work is also currently underway to open the Capital Suite Hotel in the
Exhibition Grounds area, to be a new addition to the Corporation during the current year.

Twelfth; The Sharcholders

The shareholders of the Corporation constitute the top of the governance pyramid, The General Assembly is
the source of authority for the other corporate governance bodies in accordance with the Articles of
Association, the Companies Law and the regulations and decisions issued by the Securities and Commadities
Authority and the Abu Dhabi Securities Market.

In recognition of the commitment of the National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels 1o the highest
standards of honesty and ethical values, it is considering ethical and professional conduet as fundamental to
its business and the ethical and professional conduct of the Corporation's reputation and success.

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels applies the system of professional conduct of the Board of
Directors, senior management and employees, which includes the general rules of ethics and covers a wide
range of procedures and practices in accordance with all relevant legislation and local customs.

The National Cosporation for Tourism and Hotels is commited to protect the environment, guests,

employees and property of the Corporation from environmental and health risks and safety hazards. In arder
1o fulfill this commitment, it is keen to provide a healthy and safe environment by:

®  Comply with relevant UAE laws and other related requirements,

®  Environmental protection through continuous improvement of environmental performance and

pollution protection.
&JL;.J‘“, :....:-Lg_nl.l m,ﬁ L-_...j..l.i
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® In all our business practices, we take into account the environmental impacts of these pracrices.

®  Use envdronmentally friendly products where possible.

®  Allocation of resources 1o develop appropriate programs and procedures for the implementation of this
environmental policy.

®  Measure performance and set targets for improvement.

®  Minimizing wasting water and energy without affecting the quality of service provided to guests.

®  Protect guests, employees, contractors and all concerned from all health and safety hazards by creating a
safe environment to eliminate personal injury and eccupational diseases,

®  Provide the necessary training to ensure safe practices, noting the commitment of all in these safe ways in
the performance of their duties.

®  Take measures to eliminate environmental, occupational and personal hiealth risks, which are always at
all readiness to respond to emergencies.

®  Business sector involvement with contractors who share the same principles in EHS support,

® Ensure continuous improvement by encouraging each employee to implement these policies and
contribute to a safer environment for future generations.

®  Review the policies of the Abu Dhabi Environment Health and Safety Center regularly to ensure that our
systems and policies are in line with the Center’s policies.

® We are committed to reporting 1o the Abu Dhabi Environment Health and Safety Center on the progress
of regulatory systems and regulatory authority at regular intervals.

The Corporation is keen to communicate with its shareholders through periodic press releases. A every
important development the company's information, activities and financial statements are available on the
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Corporation’s website. The executive management meets periodically with investors, experts and financial
analysts 10 review the activities and financial statements of the Corporation, in addition to providing the
opportunity for shareholders 1o ask questions 1o management during the AGM.

Signature of: Signature of: Signature of: Signature of: Internal
Chairman  of the | Audit Committee | Remuneration Control  Department
Board Chairman Committee Chairman | Director

T

Date: Date: Date: L{f 3/2 2¢ | Date: gi/a 27/3“2

GJLIHHI, 1_1-Ll1_|-u L_n&j’l 1“}11
MNational Corporaticn for Tourmrm and Hotels

Pl agregd VALY
PVET L1 4000 3 4 T W

Pago 34 of 34

PO B 6942, Aty Db, UAE
T. #5971 2 409 9999 F. « 771 2 400 9990
4. . . ot an W s noth.com



050

00'E

Hon 8

:
E
g
i
:
525
153
i
3

00'000'9

0000’8

|Arl/l- DO'000'6

0000001

DORa'Tt
HION=—8=— 1OV —8— 8

Xapu| [eJ3UBD IGRYQ NQY *SA HIDN EZOT



ey [euoneziuedio H1DN



SECTION 5

SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT

Aoty sl Ll TILJE W
MNational Corporation for Toursem and Hotels
P g T

AV T -V W aW T - s

PO Box #M2, Abu Dhab, LIAE
T #5971 2409 7909 F «971 2 409 9990

£ inboewth g W, wes noth com



)
(

NCTaH

SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT 2023

National Corporation for Tourism
& Hotels

T7




Corporafion Overview | Economic Responsibility | Environmental Duty | Life at NCT&H

We are pleased to present this Sustainability Report as ocur commitment
to you, the economy, the environment, and our people Our report remains
to highlight our progress and as continuous showcase of the Company's
governance as a whole and its practices as a leading corporation for
tourism, catering and support services.

In an economic world where changes are fast paced and can be material

Letter to Stakeho'ders = : or significant, we have made it our mission to preserve our steadfast

commitment to our sustainable goals critical for the company 's success.
We move toward generating positive societal impact and a sustainable

- competitive advantage as a result of the increasing stakeholder
e expectations on data for sustainable initiatives.
P | {1 As we progress and continue to grow, our pledge to service excellence
Li- i l I- 1 _. | - will always remain true. Our dedication to sustainability will always be a
ad “ ey - F — challenge but the rewards will always outweigh the derived benefits.

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 2
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About this Report

This report has been prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards:
Universal Standards 2021

Report Assurance

All necessary information has been supplied by each and respective division
and has been reviewed and accassed by the depariment heads. Internal
reviews were also dedicated to ensure the quality and correctness of the
information Our Annual Report for the year 2023 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

3 MCTA&H Sustainability Report 2023

Scope of the Report

This report presents our activities during the year 2023 in the United Arab
Emirates only. Financial and siatistical data includes the head office, retail,
catering, and owned hotels — unless stated otherwise. All monetary figures are
expressed in United Arab Emirates Dirhams.

Contact Person

Mr. Fawaz Chaarani (Human Resources Manager)
National Corporation for Tourism & Hotels

PO Box 5942, Abu Dhabl United Arab Emirates

T: +971 2:409 9971

F: +971 2:409 9990
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Our History

Boundaries do not exist in the world of tourism. A fast-growing industry that continues to make our world smaller, yet largs
visitors from the four comers of the globe and infroduces them to various cullures and traditions, nwﬂyﬁ Ui

The National Corporation for Tourism & Hotels (NCT&H) confributes fo the promc
has foliowed are: hotels, catering services, transporf and retail. mm& T
vmelpnisupernm
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Message from our Chairman

National Corporation for Tourism & Hotels' strategic objective is to bring a new
dimension of hote! luxury and style to the UAE capital Our focus is to provide
-a unique mix of hotels and serving guests in keeping with the legendary Arabic
reputation and expertise in line with Abu Dhabi's strategic Economic Vision
2030 We feel the time is right for us to gear up for an expansion so that we are
ready to take advantage of the opportunities when the economy bounces back
The tourism and hospitality business will be key drivers of Abu Dhabi's growth
in the years to come.

We are dedicated to formulating sustainability strategies that foster both
economic growth and sodial development. To achieve a sustainable balance in
the economic dimension, our commitment involves enhancing the quality of our
services and producis to cater to the diverse needs of our customers. Societal
confributions include prometing security by developing the skills of our
employees, creating job opportunities, and distributing income for a sustainable
“community . In the envirenmental aspect, we pledge to conduct environmentally

friendly operafions at every stage and consider both short- and long-term
mmnmmnlﬁnqmctsﬂnuughmﬂmmp[iydﬂh The challenges ahead
demand confinuous innovation and collaboration. We are commitied to

exploring new avenues, embracing emerging technologies, and engaging with
stakeholders to enhance our suslainability practices further.

The Middie East region has managed to cushion the effect of the global
economic furbulence, due to the sound fundamentals of our economy and the
‘commitment of the govemments in the region to ensure a sustainable business
friendly environment NCT&H is well positioned to participate and reap the
benefits in the future while creating consistent improvement in shareholders'
values and retums.

On behalf of my fellow Board members, | express grafitude to Shareholders,
public and private entities, Management, and Corporation employees for their
ongoing trust and support. Our cofledlive efforts go beyond establishing a robust
business; we are actively contribufing to a global environment where prosperity
coexisis with both environmental sustainahility and secial harmony.

H.E. Tareq Abdulraheem Ahmed Rashed Al Hosani
Chairman of the Board
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Intoday’s ver changing business enviroriment, i s become progressivel
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Our Mission & Values

The MNational Corporation for Tourism & Hotels (NCT&H) core values of respect, integrity and service excallence are the code by which it operates.
Coupled with recognition, awards, and parinership;, NCT&H has set a new gold standard in Abu Dhabi hoiel operations, catering, retall, and
transportation
Thesa core values represent links that bind our stakeholders and business associates together through a win-win partnership. Bazed
on the fundamental core values
MCTE&H is firmly commitied to manage and realize owners’ and pariners’ enfrusted vision for the Abu Dhabi tourism

industry




Corporate Governance
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Board of Directors

The Board of Direclors consisis
prmarily of UAE nafionals. The
BOD has been active in building a
stiong corporale  govemance
culfire that plays an imporiant

role in defining and implementing
the siandards of responsibility
fhat enable the managemeni fo
manage fhe Corporafion to the
best benefiis for shareholders.

Nomination &
Remuneration Commitiee
Defines policies and criteria for
nomination, penodic review,
succession, appointment and
termination, ensuring the
independency of independent
members and conflict of interest.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee acknowledges
the responsibility for review of
work mechanism and ensuring its
effecliveness. One of the roles of
the audit commiliee is o also
oversee the work of bolh the
internal and external audiors

Follow-up & Supervision
Committee of Insider's
Transaction

Responsitle in notifying insiders
with the reguired controls and
lzgal responsibilities.

| Life at NCT&H

Chief Executive Officer

The CED s mesponsibie o
corporate representation and the
expansion of s aclivities mside
and outside the borders of UAE

Sustainability Committes
G el -
structures allow us 1o support the
sustainability programs available
in the Corporation.

Executive Management
Manages the  Corporaltion's
business and provides guidance
o the execuiive body in  line
wiith fhe Corporafion’s objeclives,
sirategies and policies prescribed
by the Board of Directors and the
provisions of the law and of oither
legisiation reialed to he work of
the Corporation and its aciiviies.

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Financial Performance
Ownership Structure

Below is an overview of our financial performance for the calendar year 2023 These consolidated financial
Share Capital 899,026,128 00 statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (AED) which is the functional currency of the Group.
Listing Diate Movember 15, 2000
Incorporation  December 11, 1996
Company Type Public Joint — Stock Company

Auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers Financial Position 2023 2022 Incresskl % Change
(Decrease)
0 hi ' tage of 99.59
HF OWNEISRIp COMprISes a perceniage o Total Assets 2847874553 |  2.830,455.968 17.418585 0.62%

local — 43.09 are individually owned while 56.50
are owned by companies. The remaining 0 41 is Met Revenuse 669 204,476 710,597,888 (41,393,412) -583%

currently owned by Arabs and other

nationalities. In 2023, 81.7 million bonus shares Het Prob B8.0E1.584 63,975,603 4105975 BN
were issued to shareholders.
Segment Revenue 2023 2022 {II:;-' : gfea;;é] % Change
Hotels 195,013,579 160,834 995 34,178 583 21.25%
| Retail 49,209,384 | 60,857 954 (11.678.600) -19 15%-
Catering 432 984 713 497 220817 (64 238 104) -12.92%

11 NCTE&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Our Corporate Divisions

For managemeant purposes, the Group is currently organized into four
major operating segmenis. These segments are the basis on which the

Group reports its primary segmental information.

Management moniters the operating resufls of its business uniis
separataly for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocations
and performance management. Segment pefformance is measured
based on profit or loss. The Group has only one geographical segment -

United Arab Emirates

Hotels & Resorts
A Leader in Abu Dhabi Hotel Management & Operation. The Mational

Corporation for Tourism & Hotels (NCT&H) owns and manages some of the
best Abu Dhabi hotels and resoris, such as the InterContinental Hotel Abu
DChabi, a unigue luxury urban resort; the Danat Al &in Resort, embeddad in
the famous "Garden City of the Guif", as well as the Danat Jebel Dhanna
Resort and Dhafra Beach Hotel, both located close to Sir Baniyas Island
featuring an &00-metier private beach settings ideal for business and leisure
travelers, Featuring luxury amenities and authentic Arab hospitality, each
resort property sets an unparalleled standard for Abu Dhabi accommodation
and ladging.

NTT&H provides asset management and owner representation services in
order to maximize retums and enhance assst value to its clients. NCT&H is
able to assist ownership in improving asset value through working closely
with hotel management companies and hotels owners, managing cash flow
and controlling FF&E and capital expenditure.

\We do have a thorough understanding of the investmant cycle, therefore, we
can advise our clients on what the best investment options are, as well as

operational and other strategies aimed at unlocking value of our partners.

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 12
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Catering & Support Services

MCTE&H Catering and Support Services division was established in 1996 fo
provide catering and facility management services to organizations across
a range of sectors throughout the United Arab Emirates. Our knowledge of
international best practice combined with solid experence in local markets
positions us as a leading pariner in providing comprehensive solutions for

aur client's individual neads.

As the first Catering and Support Services Company in the Middle East to
have achieved 18001 OHSAS accreditation, we are fully committed in
promoting the highest Health, Safety & Environmental standards in catering,
support services, and human resources. Our Catering Division is the first
catering and support Services Company in the region to upgrade 18001 into
45001:2018. We provide a wide array of specialized services to include:

» Confract Food Service

» Camp Accommodation Services

» Facility Management

¢ Building Maintenance

o Office Services

*» Housekeeping and Janitorial Services

» Landscaping

e Peast Control

e Laundry Services

e Recreation Sarvices

e Kitchen Design and Equipment Supply

» Turnkey Service, including planning and construction of all facilities

13  NCTE&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Retail Division

NCT&H Retail Division operations essentially involve importing, marketing, distribution and retailing of beverage retail brands with due respect to the laws

and regulations of the UAE

Cheers Abu Dhabi "Cheers" aims to be the premier retail concept in Abu Dhabi. Our vision is the modernization of the Abu Dhabi retail shopping experience
for our customers. From the effective management of a relevant and meaningful range. promotional and merchandising initiatives that go beyond customer

expectations combined with the recruitment and training of experienced and knowledgeable staff for a confident personal service that cannot be beaten.

Hotels, Clubs, Mightclubs & Restaurants. The NCT&H On-frade team services and distributes our agency brands to the whole of the Abu Dhabi Market Our
experienced team work hard to create a beneficial offering meeting the requirements of individual accounts. Activation of key markefing activities, distribution

focus, brand development and product throughput are all key elements to our success.

MNCT&H is dedicated to making meaningful contributions to the community of Abu Dhabi whenever possible

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 14
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Transportation Division

Complementing hotels and catering operations, NCT&H partners with the National Transport Company — joint venture arrangement, for its transfers and
large movemeant requirements in the UAE. Established in 2002, the logistics entity Is proud of its diverse fleet, including luxury buses and the latest Audi and
Mzarcedes Benz models. It provides 24-hour services for car rentals, public transportation, airport franspori, and corporate needs, ensuring passengers enjoy

highest level of comfort and safety af affordable rates.

MNTC's reservation system is the latest technological system in the region, as it enables the operations staff to be in direct contact with the drivers via satellite
Global Pesitioning System (GPS) and Global System for Mobile communication (G5M) mobile phones, which are connected with headphones to the car
mieters. By using this technology, the operation room directs the driver in order to avoid fraffic jams, sends requests for dispatching and destination points

and hire fees.

15  NCTE&H Sustainability Report 2023
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k.

F&B Concept & Franchising

MCT&H has established a food and beverage track record which includes

franchise handling and/or leading developing F&B conceptis.

The following are its core brands of exquisite food and beverage concepts:

«  Tanjore

*  Luce

«  Shoolers

*  Szhrz Club

*  Tarab Club

s Selections

. Byblos Sur Mer

*  Tides Restzurant

+ | sifitude Jebel Dhanna Bar

*  Tealounge

s C\iew Café

= Waves Jebel Al Dhanna Café
Zgitoun Jebel Dhanna Restaurant
+  Hana Al Dhafra Bar

. Mayadeen Al Dhafra Restaurant
«  (Cafe at the lehby

*  The Bay Shors

*  Fishmarket

. Chamas Churrascarniz Brazilian Restaurant

. Arabesque

The following are franchise agreement with local and international affillations.

+  The Belgian Café
*  Cho Gao Marina Walk

. McGetligan's

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 16
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Governance & Integrity

The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels is committed to the highest
standards of management, deriving its values and strategies from a system that
integrates ethics, transparency, integrity, disclosure, accountahbility, and the
practices of leading and compliant companies. The Board of Dirsctors has been
active in building a strong corporate governance culture that plays an impartant
role in defining and implementing the standards of responsibility that enable the

management to manage the Corporation to the best benefit for shareholders.

The rofe of the management is to run the Corporation’s operations and follow
the directives of the Board of Directors, ensuring compliance with legal and
relevant regulations while pursuing the Corporation’s strategic objectives, goals

and policies

Tasks and responsibilities assigned to the executive management includes:

1. Providing accurate periodic reports on the financial position of the
Corporation.
Procadures taken to manage the risk and the internal control system.
Enable the Board of Directors to review the objectives, plans and policies
set and to review management's performance.
Provide necessary information and documents in a timely manner.
Provide the regulatory bodies any information, data, and documents

required in accordance with the provisions of the law,

For more information. please refer to our 2023 Corporate Govemance Report

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 18
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Compliance & Ethics

QOur Corporation prieritizes the principles of accountability, honesty, and
integrity in all aspects of its business. We recognize the significance of
employes involvement in achisving future success and are dedicated to

adopting ethical employment practicas to atfract and retain staff.

Competition and Fair NCT&H is a firm believer in succeeding through
Dealing honast business competition. Employses are
urged o freat customers, competitors, and

colleagues with respect and fairness.

Equal Opportunities MCT&H is committed to providing equal
and Anti-Harassment  opporiunities in all aspects of employment and will

not tolerate any discrimination or harassment of

any sorts.
Waorkplace, health, The Company's goal is to provide a consistently
and safety policy safe environment for both our team members and

our guests, In an effort to ensure this goal
becomes a reality, the Company has put in place
policies and procedures to support this goal, and
all employees are obligated to comply with the

same.

19 NCTA&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Risk Management

The ERM framework defines essential components, suggests a common
language, and provides a clear direction and guidance for risk management
depariment and its objective in implementing Enterprise Risk Management
within the Company. The following four (4) benefits expected to be delivered to

the Management

» Provide 5enior Management a clear, obiective piciure of the total
financial impact of different risks faced by the various depariments

writhin NCT&H, and insight into how to mitigate them.

» Establishing a shared understanding among its Board, Executive
Management, and employees regarding acceptable and unacceplabls
risks, to ensure that decisions at all levels align with the risk strategy of

senior management

» Prioritize the risks faced and ensure that risk mitigation focuses on the

critically identified risks; and,

» Communicate NCT&H's risk management capability to the Board of

Directors and related committees:

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 20
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Risk Management (cominustion)

The Board of Directors are committed to fostering a culture of risk management
and developing and implementing frameworks, processes, fools and siructures
that systematically and proactively identify, measure, mitigate and report risks.

The purpose and objective of the Risk Management policy is to:

¢« Communicate objectives and key principles of risk managemant.

o [Develop 8 common understanding across the Company of acceptable
risks, so that decisions across management levels are taken in

accordance with the Company's strategy

o Formalize and communicate consistent process and tools for
identifying, measuring, mitigating, menitoring and reporting risks at all

levels within the Company; and,

« Hold all staff accountable for managing the key risks within area their

areas of responsibility and clarify their interactions.

21 NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Employment Sustainability

Our culture is all about our employees. The development of our employees is
our-aim and priority; we share the same commitment to quality. The work we
do is carried out to standards beyond best practice in an exciting environment
where success thrives. Our clients receive high-quality services thanks to the
hard work and dedication of our employess Besides that, we are reviewing
the performance of our employees on annual basis in order to encourage
them to work smart and ultimately get the deserved reward as we organizs
special workshops from time to time in order to raise the spirit and the

meaning of the teamwark

Supporting Local Suppliers

\We encourage our procurement team to incorporate a minimum of 20% of
local supplies in their products and services. Local producis are given higher
priority in terms of supplier selection. Suppliers with high Mational In-Country
Value (ICV) scores are priortized in awarding the business thereby
participating in prometing local vendors and entrepreneurs. The approval of
a supplier is based on one or a combination of the multiple criteria including,
past experience, certifications, credibility, reputation, HSEQ compliance,

internal evaluations, and possible effects to sustainability.

In 2023, 34% of the Catering suppliers are |ICV certified which increased by
5% from the previous year. While NCT&H is also an ICV certified company
Catering has a percentage split on sourcing in value of 44% (9% increase
from prior year) for local products of major suppliers in the region and 56%
for other products, thereby showing our commitment to support the UAE

economy

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 22
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Sustainability Strategy

Since our founding, sustainability was a core component of our sirategic
diraction and vision, positioning us as pioneers of corporate sustainability in the
region and the world and to this day, sustainability is integrated into our
operations at all levels. The NCT&H strategy is supported by a stakeholdar-
focused, data-driven approach that adjusts to changes at the global, regional
and local levels, and meets the needs of stakeholders. Embedded in our

approach is the proactive stewardship of the Six Capitals
1. Matural
2 Human
3. Social and Relationship
Manufactured
5. Intellectual

5. Financial

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Partner for waste reduction

MCT&H i= regulated by Center for Waste
Management, TADWEER. Waste generated by
MCT&H is managed as per the guidelines sat by
TADWEER. All recyclable and non-recyclable
waste is disposed of in appropriate recycling
centers which are managed by Abu Dhabi Waste

Management Center.

In a report issued last 2023, Catering sites
disposed of 51.25 tons of Agriculiural Farms
(Putrescible waste) which decreased by
53.91% from 2022, 818.33 fons of non-
recyclable waste which decreased by 54.17%
from the previous year and .02 tons of
recyclable waste. Both recyclable and non-
recyclable waste are guantified, and measures are
in place to reduce it year on year. The significant
decrease In wasle was also dus to the

demaobilization of some campsites.

Waste Reduction
MCT&H is ensuring to reduce its waste by applying
best available strategies such as
e Efficient inventory management
¢ |dentifying and confrolling major waste
SOUrCes

« \Waste reduction audits

25 NCTE&H Sustainability Report 2023
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Recycling Program

All glass bottles and aluminum cans are collected
separately and recycled Plastic materials are
collected separately from the place of waste
generation including laundry, restaurants and food
production areas by an assigned person and
recycled. Printer cartridges and batteries are
recycled where possible. Wastepaper and
cardboard collected from the entire hotel is
separated from landfill waste for recycling
Cooking oil is collected by a licensed contractor

and recycled.

Green Practices

The:use of lighting, heating and air conditioning Is
constantly monitored to ensure these resources
are not wasted without compromising the comfort
of our guests. Motion light sensors are installed in
the comridors. Stationery items are reused
wherever possible. Soap dispensers are used in
public toilets to reduce the waste from under-
utilized soap bars. Implementation measures are
continually monitored for progress through regular

assessment



Corporation Overview |

Partner of preservation

Water Conservation

Hotel rooms have been equipped with low-flow
aerator systems for showerheads, toilets and
faucets to cut down water consumption. Public
area tollets are installed with sensor taps.
Waterizss and sensor fype urinals have been fixed

in kotel public arsa toilets and employeas toilets.

Guests can do their part by opting to have their
linens changed on the second night of their stay, in
order o reduce the amount of water and chemicals
used in the cleaning process. Guests can
participate in the towel re-use program. in which
they can hang their towels back on the rack and
reuse them or simply place the towsls in the

bathtub to be replaced by clean, fresh onas.

Electrical Energy Conservation
Light-emitting diode (LED),
efficient lighting technolegy, is being used within

a highly energy-

the hotel. All equipment being purchased is Energy
Star® compliant. New programmable thermostats
in guestrooms eliminale unnecessary energy
usage. Energy efficient light bulbs are installed
wherever possible and ongeoing. Guests can
participate by keeping their door closed when the
air conditioning is switched on

4

o N
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Our hotel (Danat Al Ain Hesort} is utilizing Varable
Frequency Drive (VFD) for its chiller compressor.
The VFD allows for precise control of the chiller
compressor's speed by adjusting the frequency
and voltage supplied to its motor. This flexibility
enables the chiller to match the cooling load
requirements more accurately. By modulating the
compressor speed based on demand, VFDs can
help manage energy peaks, potentially reducing
electricity costs and contributing to more stable

power usags.

Paper Waste Limitation

Email communications are only printed when
necessary. Copies, notes and memos are edited
on the computer to avoid printing and reformatting
faxes to eliminate cover sheets Hevision features
in word processing software is used to edit
documents on-screen instead of printing drafts and
making handwritten comments. Furthermore,

double-sided printing has also been adopted.

To minimize paper utilization, an electronic filing
sysitem was adopted. An intranet network is
glready in place to implement electronic printing
which simplifies the fransfer of information and
reduces the amount of paper wastad in printing

drafts and other documents

Life at NCT&H

This system enables employees to eliminate the
nead for printing by allowing the transfer and
exchange of soft versions of documents rather
than hard copies among themselves. Every
employee is allotied access to the nebwork upon
joining the company. Important company policies
and documents are stored on the network, which
can be accessed by all relevant employses,
minimizing the need to circulate hard copies of the

same policies and documents

Advertising and bookings are encouraged via the
Hotel web sites to reduce paperwork. There is an
on-going program to re-use paper at all hotel
offices and receplion desk before they are

discarded.
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Wasle Segregation

Waste segregation at source is already practiced.
A proper waste segregation plan is proposed for
further actions according to the scope of NCT&H
activities. Waste segregation can be done
manually or mechanically. Following ars the details

for waste segregation’

» All waste will be segregated at source as per

type of  waste {recyclable, non—

recyclable/non-putrescible, putrescible and
hazardous).
 \Wastes shall be collected, segregated and
stored in color-coded waste containers for
different types of wasies
» Forreuse purposes, some waste such as used
printers, computers, or metal will be sold to a
downstream vendor and record keeping will be
in place.
Source segregation awareness bulld-up training
for employees and staff will be continued in the

coming year.

Life at NCT&H

Green line Environmental Services

We have partnered with Green line Environmental
Services to further support us in our objective of
efficient and effective waster management
Included in the risk assessment are the following
forms of activities and its hazard aspect:

s Collection, construction, demolition of wastie

s Collection of bulky and green waste

s ‘Wasie handling and transportation

s Chemical handling

s Cleaning and maintenance of bins and skips

s Mechanical and manual sweeping
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Waste Management Policy

MCT&H has chalked out a waste management
policy that is based on the 3Rs strategy. The main
aims of the waste management policy are as

follows:

Management Commitment
Top management will ensure the effective and
integrated implementation of the waste reduction

plan within the organization

Encourage and Promote 3Rs Culture
To encourage and promote the organizational
culture in coherence with the 3Rs (reduce, reuse,

and recycle) strategy.

Reduce Landfill Waste

The management will ensure the implementation
in line with the policy, which aims to enforce
minimizing the negative environmental impacts of
business activities by reducing the landfill wasts
and ensuring disposal of waste materials in an

environmentally responsible and safe manner

Availability of Resource
Management will ensure the provision of all
resources (financial and human) necessary for the

implementation of the Waste Reduction Action
Flan.

Training and Awareness

The management will engage a specific team for
the implementation of the Waste Reduction Action
Plan. This team will also ensure the provision of
training and awarenass corresponding to specific
roles, responsibiliies, and tasks within the
integrated framework to achieve the overall

objectives.

Sustainability of Waste Management System
The management will engage a specific team for
the implementation of the Waste Reduction Action
Plan. This team will also ensure the provision of
training and awareness comresponding to specific
roles, responsibiliies, and tasks within the
integrated framework to achieve the overall
objectives.

NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 28
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Waste Reduction Action Plan

As a responsible entity, NCT&H believes in

sustainahility, respects the local applicable laws

and is committed to the implementation of Abu

Dhabi Vision 2030. Cur WRAP aims fo esiablish a

waste management baseline and to reduce wasie

generation at the NCT&H facility. It also ensures
environmentally sound disposal of waste.

This Waste Reduction Action Plan (WRAP) has

been prepared for the purpose of clearly identifying

the requirements for managing the wasies
generated by day-to-day operations of NCT&H

in order to achieve:

+ 20% overall waste reduction per year to
comply with Tadweer requirements for the
Waste Reduction Action Plan [WRAP).

s+ Procurement of equipment and services for
implementation of the Solid Waste

Management (3WWM) system and to provide a

baseline for all other ftypes of waste

management plans

Economic Responsibility |
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Consaolidation of information about the SWM
system by conducting well-definad
accountability for generated waste
Compliance with Waste Reduction Policy
Compliance with regulatory requirements
Increased profitability by reducing, recycling
and reverting waste from fandfill.

Increased awareness of employees and staff
so that they can contribute and support the
management for the effective implementation
of a plan to reduce waste

Identification of all types of waste produced
during organization activiies and fo take
appropriate measures to control and reduce
waste.

Promotion to reduce, reuse, and recycle
culture in all services and activities of the

corporation

Life at NCT&H

» Environmentally sound disposal of waste.
» Continuous improvement in the waste
management system

» Management of waste contractors

Types of Waste
MCT&H has a diversified porifolic including
catering, support services, facility management
and cleaning services. NCT&H alzo operates as an
environmental service provider and has a permit to
practice waste management from Tadweer
Following is a list of the types of waste generatad
at NCT&H facilities and other sites where NCT&H
is responsible for waste management.

» Inert/Strest Sweeping (Garbage)

» Wood Waste

» Plastic

» Cardboard/Carton

» Paper

»  Agricultural Farms

» Chemical\Waste




—
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Waste Management Process

MCT&H adopts best waste management practices
to handle all types of waste (both hazardous and
non-hazardous) NCT&H executed the application
and ongoing enhancementis of the 3Rs strategy to
fuifill the

Reduction Action Plan. This includes striving for a

objectives ouflined in the Waste
20% reduction in overall waste within the next year,
aligning with the specifications set by the Centre of
Waste Management (CWM). As far as recyclable
waste is concerned, paper, plastic. and wood
waste are stored separately after segregation in
areasiskips for final

designated disposal at

recycling facilities.

NCT&H Head Office

MCT&H has signed a contract with the CWM
approved ESP Zone Waste Management for the
collection of waste from its head office. Paper and

plastic were produced from this location

—
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NCT&H Client Sites

MCT&H is the CWM approved environmental
service providers (ESPs) for the region who can
manage waste transporiation. Our major partner is
ADNOC Refining ADRD. The types of wasie

collected from these faciliies consisted of

inert/street sweeping and wood waste:

NCT&H Retail Division

MCTE&H has signed a contract with Averda VWaste
Management LLC for the collection of waste from
its retail division

MCT&H Catering has contract with AVERDA
Waste Management LLC for the collection of
regular waste, plastic. and cardboard recycling

from the central warehouse

Life at NCT&H

NCT&H Chemical Store
NCT&H has also signed a contract with the CWM
approved ESP CLEANCO Waste Treatment LLC

for the collection of waste from its chemical store.

Hazardous waste was generated from this facility
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Corporation Programs

Beach Cleaning

Cur hotels annually embark on initiatives aimed at
preserving the wmarine ecosystem through
participation in beach cleaning activities. Coastal
areas host a variely of ecosysiems, and the
consistent dedication to cleanliness acts as a
protective measure for these habitats. This
contributes o the

commitment  actively

conservation of biodiversity, establishing an
environment that encourages tourists to observe

and appreciate wildlife in its natural surroundings.

Sewage Treatment Plant

One of our owned hotels — Danat Jebel Dhanna
FEesort, is able fo recycle and reuse water.  All
purified and recycled water is being used for the
irigation system to maintain hotels garden areas,
plants and trees. Llab testing is periodically
performed to ensure that the produced recycled
water does not result in any risk to anyone staying
in our property. This was made possible through
our partnership with Enlecn Technical Services
LLC.
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Earth Hour (March 25, 2023)

Our hotels participated in the global initiative,
called Earth Hour, erganized by World Wide Fund
for Nature (VWWF). This symbolic lights-out event
is a movement in uniting everyone to act on climate
crisis and to protect the planet. The celebration is
a symbol of a broader commitment toward nature
and our planet For further details, refer to

hitps fwww earthhour.orgffags.

Green Parking (EV Charging Stations)

One of the initiatives taken by the corporation is
making available EV Charging stations in our
owned hotels. Through the partnership with Future
Link, Porsche, & Tesla, may now recharge their
vehicles in the Hotels. By opening an avenue for
renewable energy consumption, it allows us to
decrease the number of consumers who are still
tied up with using non-renewable sources As a
background, non-renewable energy are sources
that carry great risk of depletion. Examples of this

are coal, petroleum, and natural gases.

Desert Cleaning Campaign
The catering and support services division held
multipie cleaning campaign activities as part of our

continued support to the community.

Life at NCT&H
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Aluminum Can Recycling Campaign
MCT&H received a certificate of appreciation from
the Emirates Environmental Group's "Can
Collection Drive" for contributing 75 kg of cans.
This added to a total of 11,254 kg of aluminum
cans collected for recycling across the UAE. The
achievement was made possible through the
collaborative efforts of the Catering and Support
Services  Division and Hotels  Division,
demonsirating our commitment to sustainable
development. Recycling aluminum cans results in BL UE FLAG AWARD
lower carbon emissions compared to primary
production, contributing to a  positive
environmental impact and mitigating climate

change.

Blue Flag Award

Intecontinental Hotel Abu Dhabi has achieved the
Blue Flag Award from the Foundation for
Environmental Education for the season 2023 -
2024, The Biue Flag Programme champions
sustainable development in freshwater and marine
seitings, encouraging local authorities and beach
operators o meet elevated standards in four
essential categories: water quality, environmental
management, environmental education, and
safety.
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Majra Impact Seal 2023

The National Corporation for Touwrism & Hofels
(NCT&H) has achieved remarkable recognition by
eaming the Majra Impact Seal during the
inauguration of World Purpose Summit (WWP)
2023. Proudly securing the Silver Tier, NCT&H
stands out as the sole entity in the Hotels/Catering
& Support Service industry to be acknowledged for
its substantial contributions to sustainability. The
acknowledgment of the Silver Tier is a testament
to the corporation’s commitment to
environmentally responsible practices. The
corporation’s dedication to sustainable
development is evident through its continuous
efforts, and it anticipates aiming even higher by
aspiring to receive the Gold and Platinum awards

in the future.

MCT&H remains steadfast in its pursuit of
sustainability beyond profitability, showcasing an
unwavering dedication 1o Implementing and
actively participating in initiatives that yield positive
impacts on the environment This recognition
underfines the corporation’s ongoing role in
fostering a greener and more sustainable future.
The pramier of WWP. was meticulously organized
by GHAYA under the pafronage of the UAE
Ministry of Economy, on November 7 and &, 2023,

in Dubal, aligning with the path leading to COP28
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Food Wastage Program

Our Catering Division prioritizes continuous
initiatives for food waste reduction through
campaigns and training. Recegnizing that food loss
occurs across the entire value chain, from production
to consumption, the program addresses the
environmental impact, including contributions to an
unstable climate and global greenhouss gas
emissions. Periodic food waste reduction initiatives
are implemented at various sites, addressing distinct
phases of food production. During the receiving and
storage stages, a thorough inspection of all goods is
carried out to ensure quality and safety, with
pariicular attention given o perishable or short-lite
products. The food preparation phase emphasizes
awarenass of the precise quantity of raw materials
needed for a specific number or volume of finished
products. At the service stage, ongoing measures
include regular menu reviews, identification of least-
maoving dishes, and careful control of food portions to

minimize plate waste.

The Catering Division has incorporated Chefs Eye
Tech as a precision tool for systematically recording
and overseeing food waste. On a monthly basis, the
team  thoroughly analyzes trends, revisits
established targets, and compares them with the
observed pafierns to assess the progress made in

minimizing food waste.

A
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The company's commitment to  achieving
Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) 12.3, which
targets a 50% reduction in per capita global food
waste by 2030, is exemplified through its active
participation with ne'ma for Food Waste Reporting.
This involvement extends to a national trial
organized by ne'ma for reducing food loss and waste
within the HoReCa sector in the UAE, spanning from
August 1 to October 25, 2023

During this  trial period, are engaged In
comprehensive  reporting, encompassing the
declaration of kitchen waste, plated wasie, and
edible waste. This meticulous data collection is
crucial for understanding and addressing the specific

points in the value chain where food waste occurs.

ne'ma, a collaborative effort between the Ministry of
Climate Change and Environment and Emirates
Foundation, aims to combat food loss and wasle
throughout the entire value chain. The initiative
strives not anly to address the practical aspects of
waste reduction but also to influence behaviors and

attitudes surrounding food consumption.

1 2 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

TARGET 12+3

HALVE GLOBAL PER
CAPITA FOOD WASTE
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Data Statistics

Performance metrics
2023 continued to be a
challenging year for everyone,

we have pushed our best efforis

to achiesve reduction of waste Oraniad Hotul - Food waslo Catoring Divislon - Food washe
while increasing our efforts in V%0 00 caalna Moo .
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Catering division on the other
hand, was able to support said ] :
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18875
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significantly through limitation of :i : 126.40 | %4000 12610
waste (e.q., by using only what is 120 00 *:':
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demaobilization of some camp G000 @0 [
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would not be possible without the o U
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support of our customers who
have paricipated in  our
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in Ton.
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Data Statistics
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Our Philosophy

The difficulty of finding an enthusiastic and committed
waorkforce has intensified and thus it will be crucial that we
make every effort to atiract, retain and develop a diverse and
talented workforce that aligns with the overall mission and

values

Human resources programs are developed to handle this
labor shortage by focusing on crucial issues such as
productivity, motivation, standards, training, hiring, and
development. Often people assume that the HR depariment
is responsible for these issues, whersas in reality, every
manager must develop their employees. The HR department

acts as a support service.

Increasingly, more Human Resources Programs are being
developed for employees in guest contact positions since
their actions and service determine whether our guesis come
back. The front desk clerk or atiendant knows best what
services the guests want Thus, employees are the most
important resource in the hotel Training programs must be
developed to ensure employses know their jobs, their

product, and the Danat Hotels & Resort standards of service
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“We aim to provide opportunities to ensure
that we refain our employees, safeguard
posifive and supporiive work environment,

foster open communication, and manage
employee relations and development, while
also ensuring compliance with labor laws and
reqgulations.”




Vision

The vision of Danat Hotels & Resorts is to become one of the
top three regional hotel operators in the UAE. We will grow
our portfolio of properties by pursuing management

agreements and lease agreemenis as well as developing our

own hotel.

Mission
QOur mission is to maintain our achievements, to improve

them and to create new value for our customers, employess,

and sharsholders.
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Engaging our people

Engaging employees within a team is crucial to building a
productive and motivated workiorce. Different programs
were held for the team to feel engaged, more likely to be
committed to the company's goals, take ownership of their
work, and provide excellent customer service. Programs
such as wellness activities, sports activities, social activities,

and many more.

Our objective is to always unite our employees and fo be
there even during difficult times. We are proud of the number
of employeses who have dedicated their profession and have
stayed with us through the years. Our diversity in age

represents our acceptance and respect for each generation.
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Corporate Culture & Principle

Culture is made up of many components including traditions,
principles, core values, beliefs, operational philosophy and
visions. The following outlines or company's beliefs and

principles, which forms an integral part of our culture;

Ethical Behavior — We push to adhere fo the highest ethical
and business etiquetie standards in accordance with best
practice and laws of the countries, states, and cities in which
we do business. Our ethical leaders serve as role modsls for
our employees, setting the tone for the organization and
inspiring others to comply. Our strong ethical culiure
enhancas employee morale and satisfaction, increases
customer trust and loyalty, and helps attract and retain fop

talent

Technological Advances — We aim to use the most
effective technology and systems available that will achieve
strong analytical abilities, improve the financial contrals, and
assists in having adequate historical data in all pertinent

aspects of the business.

Environmentally conscious & Productive — We are
conscious and committed fo undertake our fair share in
seeking to preserve and protect the environment whan
conducting business. We identify ways to sireamline
processes, reduce waste, and increase efficiency through
established goals and targets for sustainability and engage

employees in the effort to achisve them.
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Best Practice for Corporate Citizenship — We respect our
suppliers, associates, and communities and strive to achieve
a balanced, fair, and harmonious co-existence within
communities and environment.

Individual Opportunities, Communications, and
Expressions — We give our employees the appropriate
resources, training, and authority required to carry out their
responsibilities. YWe treat each other fairly with respect for
individuals, while dewveloping our talents and skills to their
fullest potential to increase our contribution to the success of
the organization we are in. By promoting individual
opportunities and communication, we create a positive and
supportive  work  environment, enhance employee
engagement and satisfaction, and foster a culture of

innovation and collaboration.

Quality and Customer Orientation — We recognize that
superior quality of products and services, continuous
improvement and innovation and increased efficiency and
competitiveness are key elements in fulfilling both internal

and extemnal customer expectations.

In Search of Excellence on behalf of our Shareholders &
their Interest — We pledge to protect and ever seek fo
increase shareholders’ interast and valus at the bast of our
ability. Thus, through continuing financial growth of each
business, we will constantly improve the return on investment

io our shareholders.
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Equal Opportunity

We are committed to a policy and practice of deciding all

matters relating to employment — including hiring,

compensation, advancement, fransfer, and promotion —

solely on the basis of qualification, experience, and merit. We

~ donot discriminate on the basis of race, religion. complexion,

gender, age. national origin, handicaps. marital status,
sducation, or medical record. This results in a more
productive and inclusive workplace, where different
perspectives and experiences are valued, and employses
feel supporied and respecied.

The employee's advancement within the organization
depends upon his or her performance. The employes is
considered for advancement when he or she demonsfrates
the competence and judgement nesded for the next level of
responsibility. The performance of the employee is evaluated

in writing at least once each year

Promotion

Within the Owned Hotels, 12 females and 15 females in the
Catering division were successfilly promoted. In the case of
Owned Hotels, women accounted for 21% of the overall
inter-company transfers, whereas in the Catering division,
this ratic stood at 5%. Additionally, the Retail division

experienced growth, reaching a 25% ratio for the year.

Increment
Our Retall division has increased significantly with a ratio of
23% were attributed to females for increment purposes. This
commitment to

signifies  our fostering =qguality and

recognizing the contributions of women in the workplace.

Life at NCT&H

Women Empowerment

Diversity allows us to learn from one another. However, we
understand that it has been a struggle worldwide to close the
gap between the female to male ratio for any given industry.
This year we showcased our support for the female
representation by joining them in the international women's
day held last March 2023

Cur goal is that we become an organization wherein equal
opportunity is made available for everyone. Looking ahead,
we are committed in continuously decreasing the gap
between the male to female ratio to unleash their full potential
and make valuable contributions to the economy and society.
We are devoted to including more programs that allow us to
create a safe working environment, free from gender-based

harassment and discrimination.

i
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Employee Recognition

Employees are the meost crucial resource in our
company and should be frequently recognized for
their  achievements such as  employes
suggestions, honesty, extraordinary performance,
and the likes. Employee recognition has a powerful
impact on employee engagement, motivation, and
job satisfaction. Moreover, employee recognition
can lead to higher staff retention rates. The cosis
incurred by high tumover rates can be decreased
when employees feel valued and appreciated,
decreasing their likelihood of leaving the company.
The HR department is responsible for developing
creative ways to recognize employees for various
reasons. The HR Manager must also ensure that
management clearly understand the wvalue of
praise and practice it daily.

We appreciate our employees who show
commitment and excel in their jobs and show our
gratitude through our Employee of the Month
(ECM). Wherein,

employee is nominated as the EOM. We alzo have

program gach month one

the Employee of the Year Program as an extra

token of appreciation for the efforts exerted by the

team.
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& monthly and yearly recognition is made in
recognition of the hard work and commitment
which significantly contribute to the success of the
Corporation. Performance evaluation is completed
based on the following criteria:
¥ Job Knowledge
Quality & Quantity of work
Attendancs
Commitment
Capacity to develop
Communication and teamwork
Attitude & Behavior
Equity and Impartial
Problem Solving
Decision Making
Judgement
Initiative & Motivation
Planning & Organizing
FPersonnel/Uniform appearance
Productivity
Creativity
Reliability
Adaptability
Listening Skills
Safety & Security

LT T T U U TR . . TR T T A O T T

Adherence to guidelines

Training & Development

The management trainee program is a fasttrack
program that trains highly potential employees for
management positions. Candidates may either be
new employees or employees who have been with
the company for a period. The program combines
theoretical and practical training in all aspects of
the hotel, and the duration of the program may last

up to a one full year.

MCT&H Catering and support services division is
an approved training center from Highfields UK
and delivers training programs in Food Safety,
Health Safety, and HACCP. The division has
qualified trainers who deliver courses in the above

areas from basic to advanced.
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Community Development

The Corporation and its employees are proud of
the positive Impact they have on many levels in the
areas where they work and live, and they prioritize
this impactin all their activities in local communities
on which they depend far the operational mission's
support, the purpose is always to give adeguate
consideration fo social issues when planning and
implementing projects and programs that the
Corporation is working on. Working together to
bring positive change, build strong relationships in
the community -and reduce the environmental
footprini caused by the activiies of some
companies in their areas of work, and lead through
providing engagement with the community in the

Company.

The Mational Corpeoration for Tourism and Hotels
believes that it can have a significant impact on the
tocal community. The Corporation supporis local
and regional care, as well as many non-profit
humanitarian working together towards a commaon
goal, which builds strong refationships. It may be
determined by community needs, goal-orented
activities, or the desire to show a company's
commitment to humanitarian causes - even if such
reasons lie outside of their industry’s core

competencies.
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Breast Cancer Awareness

We are proud to champion health and well-being
initiatives, and one cause that holds a special place
in our hearts i= Breast Cancer Awareness.
Recognizing the significance of this global health
issue. we have underiaken a concerted effort to
raise awareness and support for breast cancer

within our organization.

Mental Wellness

MCT&H Catering and support services team
implemented programs regarding the necessity of
enhancing employees’ mental wellbeing. It
includes a variety of elements, such as the
capacity to handle stress, the presence of
supportive connections, and a sense of meaning
and fulfillment. Good mental health is crucial for
general well-being and quality of life since it
enables people to cope with daily obstacles and
enjoy life. Together with enhancing the welfare
activities, a structured training program was rolled
out on Mental wellbeing. Sites organized
workshops which helped to keep the momentum

high

Caring for the Community

IntarContinental Abu Dhabi has partnered with
Basmet Amal, a charity organization, delivering
ongoing help to orphans and people in need. The
hotel provided assistance tfo individuals and
families who are facing food insecurity, helping to
ensure that they have access fo adeguate

nutrition

MCTE&H Sustainability Report 2023
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A Safe Working Environment

MCT&H has developed Food hygiene and
Quality system standards based on the HACCP
concepts and proudly hold the following 150

certifications:

. IS0 9001:2015
. IS0 140012015
. ISO 450012018
. IS0 220002018

The Catering and Support Services Division
consistently achieves and upholds successful
certifications in Health and Safety, Quality,
Food 5Safety, Environment, and HACCPE.
MCT&H also has the highest standards in
cleaning services. The division is approved from
the British Institute of Cleaning Services (BICS).

NCT&H prioritizes safe working environment for
employeses where they are profectsd from
potential hazards that may cause injury, iliness
or death. NCT&H consistently implements
various measures through conducting regular
safety training and inspections, ensuring that

the workplace is designed and maintained fo
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minimize risk, providing personal productive equipment and implementing health and safety policies.

The catering division’s incident trend decreased by 9% from the past year. The near miss trend has also
decreased by 5% from 2022, which is a great indication of the organization’s commitment 1o prevent and
eliminate accidents by reporting the near misses as they occur. If the near misses are not reportaed,

incident investigations will not be carried out and none of the problems and warnings will be found.

Health and safety incidents in Catering division were reduced by 24% compared to 2022. Food Safety
Incidents have slightly increased in 2023 compared to 2022 (from 25 to 29 incidents).

Catering Division -
Incident & Near' Miss Trend
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Catering Dwision -
Health & Food Salety Incidents

Our owned hotels also conduct frequent inspection of hotel facilities and perform incident investigation to
identify root cause for hazards as well as detecting opportunities for comective action or preventive control
measures. NCT&H constantly commit to staying up to date on safety requlations and laws and ensuring

the workplace is in compliance.
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Meet the Team

Yasar Arafath
Cluster Procurement
Manager

(India — Asia)

‘It  has

pleasure to join such a

been  great

dynamic team and people
from the greatest parts of the world. This Is the
premises fo get more knowledge and it's great fo
work, as part of InterContinental Abu Dhabi”

Lileth Cortezano
Telephone Operator
(Philippines — Asia)
“I'enjoy and look forward to
showing up for work every

day because of my

amazing team! | work with
friendliest and hardworking people that push the
needle even further for our company. Every day is
a new opportunity for me to learn and grow in my
professional life. Thank you io Danat Jebel

Dhanna Resort family "

/
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Faye Tolentino

Guest Service Agent

(Philippines — Asia)
“My journey in this hotel will
be a lifetime of gratitude, as _— p
| started with the front office ‘ ‘-/J h

a chance to have exposure to F&B semvice. Little

department and was given

did | expect that the management would see my
skills and capabilities and that | would be entrusted
to be promoted as a Senior Reservations Agent. |
will always be thankful for all the experiences and
journey that | have had with Danat Jebel Dhanna

Resort, which is a good and living memory ~

Mouna Hermouche
HR Coordinator
(Canada - North
America)

“It is my first time working in
the UAE and | feel
astonished with the work
life | have at Danat Al Ain Resort. All staff are very

friendly and supportive. | love my work and | will

continue put up my fullest effart to coniribute the
best for the Hotel ™

Ravindra Poojary
Engineering Manager
{India — Asia)

“I've been pari of this
amazing arganization

since 2022. But let me

take you back to where it
gll began in 2018 when | joined NCT&H as a
mainienance manager. From day one, | knew | had
found my home.

This organization has not only provided me with
incredible  opportupities to work on  hotel
maintenance and operations, but it has also given
me the chance to lead and guide my team.
Together, we've tackled challenges, improved
processss, and created a positive impact. But it's
not just about work.

MCT&H and InterContinental have become a part
of who | am. The experiences |'ve gained, the
things I've leamed, and the friendships 've made
both

professionally. This place has become more than

have shaped me personally  and
just a job; it's a community that I'm proud to be a
part of. | want to express my gratitude to everyone

who has been a part of this jourmey ”
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Stories of Progression

Joe Mhanna

Restaurant Manager —
Jones Social

(Lebanon — Asia)

°| started as Assistant

Manager at Chamas

Churrascaria, climbed to
Restaurant Manager at the InterContinental Hotel,
Abu Dhabi. My joy lies in iraining my team and
crafting an unforgetiable guest experience. The
empowerment given to me by the management
resulted in balancing safisfaction and financial
success Every meal under my watch wasn't just
dining; it was a sensory journey. My strategic
approach not only pleased guests but also

deliverad robust financial resufts.”
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Celebrating Milestones

Sali Lebbe Sithik Noorul
Araci Prasad — Laundry
Attendant

{Sri Lanka — Asia)

‘| have been working as a
Uniform  Attendant at
InterContinental Abu Dhabi

for 24 years. | was promoted from Room Attendant
to Uniform Attendant. | am enjoying my both life
and career with IHG. Very thankful {o company as
management is supportive and caring. Many
opportunities are available here for internal

promotion and career development | wish

company continued success”

Desmond Clifford
Moreira

Tradesman Engineering
(India — Asia)

“In the year 1982 |
stepped foot into
InterContinental Abu

Dhabi as a Locksmith and little did | know that this
place would become my home for the next 41
years. lt's been a rollercoaster filled with so many
ups and downs, but | can proudly say
InterContinental Abu Dhabi has been my home
and Engineering depariment has been my school
where |'ve honed my skills and growth both
personally and professionally.

Mow | am thrilled to share my experiences and the
skills I've gained with my younger colleagues. It
brings me joy to see them learn and grow, justas |
did all those years ago. 5o grateful for my journey
form a ftight-knit

here and together we

IntarContinental family ~

-
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Stories of Progression

Gyanu Lama
Housekeeping
Supervisor

(Nepal — Asia)

“| started my professional
journey at

InterContinental Abu

Dhabi as a Housekeeping Agent, | subsequently
eamed a promotion to the role of Housekesping
Supervisor at InterContinental Residence.
Embracing the increased responsibiliies and
challenges, | find genuine enjoyment in my evolved
position. This promotion not only reflects my
dedication to the craft but also highlights the
rewarding nature of the hospitality industry
Managing and supervising housekeeping
operafions at InterContinental Residence has
become a fuffilling aspect of my career, providing
opportunities for growth and contributing to the

excellence of the esteemed establishment

f’
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Celebrating Milestones

Raouf Yakoubi

Rooms Manager
(Tunisia — Africa)
“‘Commencing my career
in 2007 as a Concierge
Agent at InterContinental
Abu  Dhabi

Hotel I've
progressed to managing the Front Office and
Room Division at InterContinental Residencs.

This journey has been truly remarkable, marked by
personal and professional growth. Cver the years,
I've embraced diverse roles, gaining valuable
experience and skills. Currently overseeing critical
aspects of guest services and accommaodation, |
find immense satisfaction in the journey from my
beginnings to a role that encapsulates broader
responsibilities.

The evolution within the InterContinental brand has
been a fulfilling testament to my dedication and
commitment to excellence in the hospitality

industry.”

Delath Vishaka
Housekeeping
Supervisor
{Sri Lanka — Asia)

‘I staried my career at
InterContinental Abu
Dhabi as a

Laundry
Attendant, | progressed to become a Public Area
Housekesper before sscuring a prometion io
Housekesping public area Supervisor at
InterContinental Residences

Embracing the challenges and increased
responsibilities, | derive genuine satisfaction from
my current role This upward trajectory in my
career not only underscores my dedication but also
underscores the dynamic nature of the hospitality
sector. Managing and supervising housskeeping
operations at InterContinental Residence is both
fulfiling and enjoyable, contributing to my
professional growth and the excellence of the

renowned establishment ™
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Corporation Overview | Economic Responsibility | Environmental Duty | Life at NCT&H

Data Statistics

Throughout 2023, our company made significant

strides in promoting gender diversity in the Geniar Breskdown Hor

workplace. We successfully elevated the famale- 1023 Fenale  Male

?iu‘—a;n:aie;;ti.u in all the divisions ranging between Head Office 258, 5%
o 3% increase on average Ratal Div 29% ™%

In terms of women leadership, we witnessed Owned Hotel 21% 7%

noteworthy advancements in female Calering O

representation. In the managerial ranks of our s i

Owned Hotels and Catering division, the NIC 2% 98%

increase ranged between 1% to 4% on average.

While at the supervisory level, a nofable increase Relal

ranged between 1% to 3% on average was
achieved.

While we encountered challenges in maintaining
the momentum for women lzadership in the head
office and retail division throughout the year, our
commitment to  improvement remained

steadfast We continuously worked towards Growth B advancemant Promotion

enhancing our numbers and acknowledging the for 2023

valuable skills and unigue perspectives that Head Office

women bring to the organization Recognizing Retal Devasion 29% T5% 2% me % 50%
that diversity fosters innovation and success, we Owned Holels 14% BE™% 17% B83% 21% 5%
remain dedicated to creating an inclusive Catering Drasion % 4% 1% B9% 5% 25%
workplace where everyone can thrive. NTC 50% 50% 1% % - .

Opportunities for growth and advancement

progress was aided through our wvarious Bﬂfm

initiatives and sirategies aimed at promoting 20% 6%

career development for our employeses, Rﬂﬂ Dﬂmm ﬂ'ﬂi 'I'l.'ﬂ- 6% 10% - -
Owned Holels 2“ 8% 8% 10% 4% % 8%

We are happy to share the breakdown of our Catening Division 518 20% 12% 8% g 39 0.36%

years of service This represenis our NTC 308, 258 1% 25% % 1% 59

commitment to employment retention to
atiract top talenis and be seen as one of the most

desirable places to work. Age Diversity
P e 1830 150 S0
As we believe in the creative ideas and Head Office 13% 6% 6%
perspectives of our youth and the wisdom and Retad Devesion 8% 4% 48%
wealth of experience of the older generation, we Owned Holels 43% 48% A8%
do not discriminate in providing opportunity for Catenng Division 8% 9% 46%,
anyone to develop their skills. NTC 14% 72% 14% NCT&H Sustainability Report 2023 50



GRI Context Index
References to FS indicate the 2023 Annual Report, to CG indicate the Corporate Governance report for 2023, and to SR indicate the Sustainability Report 2023,

GRI 1: FOUNDATION

Statement of use

Mational Corporation for Toursm & Hotel (NCT&H) has reported the information cited in this GRI content index for the period January
1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 with reference to the GRI Standards.

GR1 used

GRI 1 - Foundation 2021

|

GRI

Disclosure

GRI 2 - GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Pagel/URL

Mational Corporation for Tourism & Hotel (NCT&H)

2-1 Organizational details PO Box 6942, Abu Dhabi United Arab Emirates
SR: Our Corporate Divisions P.11
3.2 Enthie_s included in the organization’s sustainability SR Our Corporate Divisions P.11
reporting
January 2023 to December 2023
; ; ; SH: Scope ofthe report P.2
2-3 Reporting period, frequency and contact point SR-Report Askurance P2
SR: Contact Person P.2
2-5 External assurance PricewaterhouseCoopers
SR: Qur Corporate Division P11
2-4 Activities, value chain and other business relationships FS: General Information P12
F5: Segment Information P53
27 Employees SR: Meet the Team P43
SR: Celebrating Milestones P.44
SR: Data Statistics P .47
2.8 Workers who are not employees Full dafa sel of mformation is curently unavailable
" SH: Corporate Governance P.9
o ik ol o Refer to NCT&H FS 2023 and GG 2023 available on www ncth.com
3.10 Momination and selection of the highest govemance SR: Corporate Governance P9

bady

Referto NCT&H FS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www ncth.com
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GRI

Disclosure

Pagel/URL

SR: Corporate Governance P.5

21 Chair of the highest govemance body Refer to NCT&H FS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www.ncth.com
912 Hole of the highest governance body in oversesing the SR: Corporate Governance P.9
management of impacts Referto NCT&H F5 2023 and CG 2023 available on www ncth.com
. P = SR: Corporate Governance P9
&k ClereipaRure of fesp oty Tor fmioaging e Refer to NCT&H FS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www.ncth.com
514 Role of the highest governance body in sustainability SR: Corporate Governance P9
reporting Refer to NCT&H F5 2023.and CG 2023 available on www ncth.com
" . SH: Corporate Governance P.9
213 Gronlicts ot interest Refer to NCT&H FS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www ncth.com
2-16 Communication of critical concerns SR: Compliance & Ethics P 16
. " SH: Corporate Governance P.9
2 Collective knowledge of the highest govemance body | potor 1o NCT&H FS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www.ncth.com
518 bE;;;uatmn of the performance of the highest govemance SR: Corporate Governance P.9
2-19 Remuneration policies CG: Nomination & Remuneration Committee P 13
CG: Method of defermining the remunerations P 10
271 Process to determine remunearation Full dsta set of information is currently unavailable
’ SH: Sustainability Strategy P.20
2-22 Statement on sustainable development strategy CG: Environmentat and Social Policy D32
2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising concerns SR: Compliance & Ethics P16
2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations SR: Sustainability Strategy P 15
2-28 Membership associations SR: Sustainability Strategy P.20
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GRI

2-29

Disclosure

Approach to stakeholder engagement

Pagel/URL

CG: Investors' Relation P29

2-30

Collective bargaining agreements

Collective bargaining is not permitted within the UAE

GRI 3 — MATERIAL TOPICS

3-1

Process to determine material topics

SR: Scope of the Report P2

3-2

List of material topics

SR: Contents P.3

200 — ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

SR: Financial Perdformance P.10

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Refer to NCTEH FS & CG available on wyw.ncth. com

201-4 Financial assistance received from government SR: Supporting local suppliers P.19

202:1 Ratlos of standard entry level wage by gender compared | p .. to NCT&HFS 2023 and CG 2023 available on www.ncth,com
to local minimum wage

2031 Infrastructure investments and services supported CG: Innovative Projects & |nitiatives implemented P31

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers SR: Supporting local suppliers P.19

205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to comuption Refer to NCT&H FS 2023 available on www ncth.com

9052 Communication and training about anti-corruption SR Compliance & Ethics P15

palicies and procedures

300 - ENVIRONMENTAL

301-1

Materials used by weight or volume

MCT&H currently does not collect this information at Head Office level While we are
not able to report this data, we do actively manage and report on our strategy using the
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GRI

Disclosure

Pagel/URL

301-2 Recycled input materials used SR: Recycling Program P 22
301-3 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials SR: Waste Management Policy P25
302-1 Energy consumption within the organization
- : e SR: Electrical Energy Conservation P.23
302-2 Energy consumption outside of the organization SR Data Statistics outlined in P 32
302-3 Energy intensity
§ . SR: Green Practices P 22
029 Reducton of cReigy consamplivn SR: Electrical Energy Conservation P .23
302-5 Fled[mhuns Mencry gl Epens U protua s ong SR: Electrical Energy Conservation P23
services
. . SR: Data Statistics outlined in P32
3031 Interactions with water as a shared resource SR Sewage Treatment Plant P.28
303-2 Management of water discharge-related impacts
333 Viaterwithdrawal SR: Data Statistics outlined in P.32
5R: Sewage Treatment Plant P 238
303-4 VWater discharge
303-5 \Water consumption
SR: Waste Management Policy P 25
; ¢ i . SR: Types of Wasie P 26
306-1 \Waste generation and significant waste-related impacis SR Wikt BadictonandAcion Plag 028
SR: Waste Management Process P27
3e-2 Management of significant waste-related impacts S Vianieaaimant tokioy odb

SR: Types of Waste P 26
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GRI Disclosure Pagel/URL
SR: Waste Reduction and Action Plan P 26
306-3 Wasle generated SR: Waste Management Process P27
306-4 Wasie diverted from disposal
306-5 Wasie directed to disposal
400 - SOCIAL
SR: Celebrating Milestones P44
401-1 Mew employee hires and employee turmover SR: Years of Service P 47
Fuil data sel for new employes hirez is cumently unavailable
401-3 Parantal leave As per UAE Labour Law
403-1 Occupational health and safety management system
403-7 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and incident . .
investigation SR: A Safe Working Environment P42
CG: Environmental and Social Policy P.32
403-3 Occupational health services Full data set currently unavailable
Worker participation, consultation, and communication
403-4 .
on occupational health and safety
403-5 Worker training on occupational health and safety
403-6 Promotion of worker health
A037 Prevention and mitigation of occupational health and gg ;Se_ma Wnrktinlg Ezvguqrﬁe;tf.fli 55
- : : : ; ; : Environmental and Social Pelicy P.
safety impacis directly linked by business relationships Full dafa set currently unavalable
A038 Workers covered by an occupational health and safety
management system
403-9 Work-related injuries
Y SR: A Safe Working Environment P.42
el wront-rednd N cas, CG: Environmental and Social Policy P.32 7
w-llj: -




GRI

Disclosure

Pagel/URL

Full data sel curmently unavaiable

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employes
TPt o i s e i S T | Full infermation is currently unavailable. Monetheless, each divisions are continuously

404-2 g Pg e mandated to conduct year-round trainings for the development and advancement of

assistance programs

our employee

4043 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance

and career development reviews
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees SR: Mest the Team P.43
405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men | Full information is currently unavailable
406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken This information is handled by the legal team and is considered confidential.
4139 Operations with local community engagement, impact

assessments. and development programs SR: Corporate Activities P46
1132 Operations with significant actual and potential negative SR: Comiiinity Developrent P41

impacts on local communities

414-1 Mew suppliers that were screened using social criteria
Procurement policy is currently in place to ensure that new and existing suppliers also
116-1 Assessment of the health and safety impacts of product | upholds the standards and values of the Corporation
and service categories
Incidents of non-compliance concarning the haalth and The National Corporation for Tourism and Hotels is in compliance with all applicable
416-2 stlaly Enpacts o arodiicis s saiie laws, regulations in the United Arab Emirates. During the fiscal year 2023, the
Corporation has not heen subject to any penalties or restrictions either by the
533 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and Securities and Commuadities Authority or any other regulatory body

service information and labeling

CG: Details of violations committed during the year 2023 P26
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GRI Disclosure Page/URL

Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing
417-3 communications The Mational Corporation for Tourism and Hotels is in compliance with all applicable
i . . laws, regulations in the United Arab Emirates During the fiscal year 2023, the
418-1 Suhstant:ateld complaints conceming breaches of Caorporation has not been subject to any penalties or restrictions either by the
customer privacy and losses of customer data | Securities and Commodities Authority or any other regulatory body
419-1 Non-compliance with laws and regulations inthe secial | b putaie of viotations committed during the year 2023 P26
and economic area

1..
f
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